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Calgary, Alberta 
 
ABBREVIATIONS 
 
API American Petroleum Institute 
ARTC Alberta Royalty Tax Credit 
bbls barrels 
bbls/d barrels per day 
bcf billion cubic feet 
boe barrel of oil equivalent 
boe/d barrel of oil equivalent per day 
CBM coalbed methane 
GJ gigajoules 
$m thousands of dollars 
$mm millions of dollars 
mbbls thousand barrels 
mboe thousand barrels of oil equivalent 
mcf thousand cubic feet 
mcf/d thousand cubic feet per day 
mmboe  million barrels of oil equivalent 
mmcf million cubic feet 
mmcf/d  million cubic feet per day 
MW  megawatt 
NGLs natural gas liquids 
NPV net present value 
WTI West Texas Intermediate 
 
 
DISCLAIMER: 
 
This document contains forward-looking financial and operational information including debt levels, production and capital 
expenditure projections.  These projections are based on the Trust’s expectations and are subject to a number of risks and 
uncertainties that could materially affect the results.  These risks include, but are not limited to, future commodity prices, 
exchange rates, interest rates, geological risk, reserves risk, political risk, product demand and transportation restrictions.  
Certain natural gas volumes have been converted on the basis of six thousand cubic feet of gas to one barrel equivalent of oil.  
Barrels of oil equivalent (boe’s) may be misleading, particularly if used in isolation.  A boe conversion ratio of six thousand cubic 
feet to one barrel of oil is based on an energy equivalency conversion method primarily applicable at the burner tip and does not 
represent a value equivalency at the wellhead. 
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PRESIDENT’S MESSAGE TO UNITHOLDERS 
 
 
We have enjoyed remarkable success since converting to a trust three years ago, and yet, Vermilion’s future appears even 
brighter than our past. Our talented professional team, highly experienced Board of Directors and worldwide asset portfolio are 
stronger today than at any time in the Company’s history. Our properties provide a balance of exploration and development 
opportunities that ensure the long-term viability of the Trust and the potential to generate a stable distribution stream for years to 
come. Vermilion also provides investors with exposure to some higher impact opportunities with limited capital exposure. Guided 
by an experienced and resourceful executive team with strong decision making skills, Vermilion’s employees are smart, creative 
and dedicated to achieving optimum performance from our asset base.  
 
In 2005, we achieved record production of 9.1 million barrels of oil equivalent (boe) and added net reserves of 17.8 million boe, 
replacing 297% of production. Vermilion’s reserves per unit increased 9.5% in 2005 on a debt-adjusted basis and have increased 
22.7% since we converted to a trust in January 2003.  This is a strong reflection of the sustainability of Vermilion’s business 
model.   Our estimated reserve life index, based on year-end proved plus probable reserves and fourth quarter average 
production, increased to 11.4 years at the end of 2005 from 10.6 years in 2004.  We completed successful drilling programs in 
France and Western Canada and improved our productivity from numerous gas wells in the Netherlands. In Australia, we 
purchased the offshore Wandoo Field, and in Western Canada, we acquired the balance of interest in our coalbed methane 
operations. Vermilion is firmly established in Western Canada, Western Europe and Australia - core areas that we’ll continue to 
focus on. We continue to be unique - we’re the only Canadian energy trust with production and reserves outside North America. 
 
Vermilion’s market performance in 2005 mirrored our operational success. Our unit price increased to $29.74 at the end of 2005 
from $20.12 on December 31, 2004. Combined with our steady distributions, we generated a total return to unitholders of 58% in 
2005, placing us in the top quartile of our peer group. This superior performance has been consistent over the past three years, 
during which we have generated a compounded annual rate of return of 46.4%, again placing us in the top quartile of our peer 
group. Over the same period, we outpaced the S&P/TSX Energy Trust Total Return Index by nearly 20% and the TSX 
Composite Index by more than 25%.   
 
Rising commodity prices presented new concerns for the oil and gas industry, which experienced higher competition for 
properties, personnel and services. Again, Vermilion’s employees rose to the challenge. We greatly improved our cost of adding 
reserves through the drill-bit and continued our history of low-cost reserve additions through acquisitions. Early in 2005, we 
recognized a tightening in the supply of professionals who serve the oil and gas industry, so we launched an aggressive 
campaign to attract new technical employees. Over the summer, we added more than a dozen geotechnical professionals, 
combining an infusion of youth with some senior specialists in their fields. Through all of this, Vermilion maintained a competitive 
cost structure. 
 
Our achievements are even more notable in that we have not issued any equity in the past two years, yet we’ve maintained a 
strong balance sheet. In fact, since the inception of our operating company, Vermilion Resources Ltd., in 1994 through to today, 
Vermilion has raised slightly less than $250 million of equity. Over the past three years, we have distributed more than $345 
million back to our unitholders. With our market capitalization approaching $2 billion, this is probably the strongest testament to 
the success of Vermilion’s value-creation strategy. 
 
With such outstanding results, it’s hard to imagine an even brighter future, but I’m very excited about the large inventory of 
opportunities ahead of us. 
 
On our coalbed methane properties in Western Canada, we have identified more than 450 drilling locations, giving us the 
opportunity to replace all of our Canadian natural gas production with cost-effective low-decline reserves over the next several 
years. Beyond these properties in central Alberta, we hold a significant area of land in the Drayton Valley Region that holds 
promise for both infill drilling and perhaps further coalbed methane development. 
 
Our La Torche drilling and seismic program in France’s Paris Basin indicates substantial expansion opportunities, and our 
Parentis Field in the Aquitaine Basin holds exciting possibilities for incremental hydrocarbon recovery. 
 
We are only beginning to evaluate development opportunities in the Netherlands, where we also see longer-term expansion 
possibilities. And in Australia, we’ll conduct the first well interventions in the Wandoo field since it was put on production nearly 
10 years ago. 
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We are concluding our agreement with ExxonMobil to acquire its subsidiary in France, which will provide us with additional 
production from properties adjacent and complementary to our existing production. These properties will supply Vermilion with a 
number of synergies and further enhance our operations in France. This acquisition will mark our third international purchase in 
as many years and reflects our commitment to building on the solid foundations we have in Western Europe and Australia. 
 
Last year, we completed a comprehensive seismic program on our Aquitaine Maritime concession in the Bay of Biscay offshore 
southwestern France. Vermilion and its partner in this prospect, Verenex Energy Inc., are seeking a third party to participate in 
drilling this world-class exploration prospect, likely in 2007. Verenex, in which Vermilion has a 49% equity interest, is moving 
forward this spring with an aggressive drilling and seismic program on its Ghadames Basin concession in Libya. Both of these 
projects create option value that gives our unitholders high-impact opportunities with minimal capital risk. 
 
Vermilion respects our obligation to operate our properties responsibly. The Trust has established a reclamation fund and set 
aside funds to take care of future asset retirement obligations, leading our peer group in this aspect of the business. We continue 
to strengthen the fund through lump-sum additions at the time of acquisitions and ongoing contributions based on production. We 
recognize the land use associated with our production is a privilege and strive to protect the rights of leaseholders and preserve 
the environment for future generations. 
 
Yes, Vermilion’s past performance has been outstanding, and our future opportunities hold great potential. We are truly stronger 
than ever. 
 
I would like to thank the Trust’s Board of Directors and welcome our newest member, Ken Davidson. Vermilion is proud of the 
strong governance provided by our Board and the significant experience these gentlemen share with our executive team. I would 
personally like to thank Claudio Ghersinich, one of Vermilion’s founders, who relinquished his role as head of our business 
development group in mid-2005, but continues to share his insight with Vermilion at the Board level. Claudio played a key role in 
building Vermilion’s success and we are pleased he will continue to provide guidance as we move forward in our second decade 
of operations. I welcome all of our new employees and unitholders and thank all of our existing stakeholders for your continued 
support. 
 

 
 
 

 
Lorenzo Donadeo 
President & Chief Executive Officer  
February 21, 2006 
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 
 
The following is Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) dated February 15, 2006 of Vermilion’s operating and financial 
results for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004.  This discussion should be read in conjunction with the Trust’s audited 
consolidated financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, together with accompanying notes.   
 
NON-GAAP MEASURES 
 
Included in this report are references to terms commonly used in the oil and gas industry, such as cash flow and cash flow per 
unit and funds from operations which are expressed before changes in non-cash working capital and is used by the Trust to 
analyze operating performance, leverage and liquidity.  These terms are not defined by Generally Accepted Accounting 
Principles (“GAAP”).  Consequently, these are referred to as non-GAAP measures.  Cash flow, as discussed in this report, 
appears as a separate caption on the Trust’s cash flow statement as “funds from operations” and is reconciled to net earnings. 
 
FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION 
 
This report contains forward-looking financial and operational information including earnings, cash flow, production and capital 
expenditure projections. These projections are based on the Trust’s expectations and are subject to a number of risks and 
uncertainties that could materially affect the results. These risks include, but are not limited to, future commodity prices, 
exchange rates, interest rates, geological risk, reserves risk, political risk, product demand and transportation restrictions. 
 
HIGHLIGHTS ($m except per unit amounts) 2005 2004* 2003* 
Revenues  $529,938 $354,525 $314,146 
Net earnings from continuing operations 158,471 66,010 44,962 
Net earnings 158,471 127,513 43,477 
 Per unit basic 2.57 2.12 0.82 
 Per unit diluted 2.49 2.07 0.81 
Funds from operations  278,165 170,179 144,761 
 Per unit  4.50 2.83 2.73 
Return on equity (%) 37.4 34.0 12.0 
Total assets 1,111,739 844,602 780,589 
WTI (US$/bbl) 56.56 41.40 31.04 
AECO (CDN$/mcf) 8.77 6.56 6.69 
Realized price ($/boe) 53.48 39.48 37.52 
Cash flow netback ($/boe) 1 $    30.15 $   20.19 $   17.29  
1   2003 netbacks are calculated including the impact of $25.6 million of reorganization costs 
 
2005 Summary of Quarterly Results ($m except per unit amounts) Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 
Revenue $108,715 $117,360 $149,877 $153,986 
Net earnings 25,990  32,585 50,118 49,778 
 Per unit basic 0.43  0.53 0.81 0.80 
 Per unit diluted $     0.41  $     0.53 $     0.79 $     0.78 
 
2004 Summary of Quarterly Results ($m except per unit amounts) Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 
Revenue $ 77,610 $ 87,420 $ 96,260 $ 93,235 
Net earnings from continuing operations* 10,797 19,309 14,902 21,002 
Net earnings* 11,625 78,184 14,902 22,802 
 Per unit basic* 0.20  1.31 0.25 0.38 
 Per unit diluted* $     0.19  $     1.28 $     0.24 $     0.37 
* Restated stock compensation expense (Note 11) 
 
QUARTERLY RESULTS 
 
Quarterly results in 2005 have improved due to the Australia acquisition which was completed at the end of the first quarter of 
2005.  In addition, WTI prices in the last half of 2005 were approximately US$10.00 per barrel higher than the first half of 2005.  
The increase in earnings in the three months ended June 30, 2004 relates to the sale of Aventura for a net gain of $68.0 million.   
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FOURTH QUARTER 2005 
 
Revenue for the three months ended December 31, 2005 increased 65% over the three months ended December 31, 2004.  
This increase is due to an increase in production resulting from the acquisition of assets in Australia as well as increased prices 
received.  WTI increased 24% quarter over quarter and AECO increased 74% in the same period.  Earnings increased 
significantly due mostly to the increase in revenues.  In December 2005, the Trust’s ownership in Verenex was decreased to 
approximately 49% and the Trust discontinued consolidating Verenex effective December 15, 2005.  Prior periods have not been 
restated. 
 
OPERATIONAL ACTIVITIES 
 
Canada 
In Canada, the Trust participated in the drilling of 66 wells (30.4 net) resulting in 19 gas wells (10.7 net), 1 oil well (0.5 net), 2 
abandoned wells (0.6 net) and 44 standing wells (18.6 net) awaiting further evaluation, completion or tie-in.  Of the total wells 
drilled in 2005, 55 (24.0 net) were related to the CBM / shallow gas program, which achieved a 100% success rate. 
 
In addition to the Trust’s drilling operations, an additional 21 wells were drilled on Vermilion lands by third party operators through 
farm-out arrangements.  Vermilion maintained an overriding royalty of small working interest in these wells. 
 
France 
Vermilion drilled and completed three new La Torche wells and re-entered and completed the Champotran 23 well which was 
temporarily abandoned in 2004, all in the Paris Basin.  Average production rates from these wells were approximately 180 boe/d 
per well, with each well adding approximately 400,000 bbls of reserves on a proved plus probable basis. 
 
Netherlands  
The Trust installed 16 small diameter tubing strings to improve the deliverability of these gas wells.  Vermilion completed major 
plant inspections and turn-arounds at its Harlingen and Garijp facilities and installed a new canal crossing for one of its delivery 
pipelines. 
 
Australia 
Vermilion applied for and received government approval to operate the offshore Wandoo facilities.  A modest debottlenecking of 
the topside facilities on the Wandoo B platform was successfully completed during the summer, which combined with a modified 
cycling program of these wells increased production by approximately 200 boe/d.  Vermilion undertook a geological modeling 
study and a reservoir study to explore different avenues to increase production from this field.   
 
PRODUCTION 
 
Production in Canada during 2005 averaged 4,870 bbls/d of oil and NGL’s and 38.4 mmcf/d of natural gas compared to 5,723 
bbls/d of oil and NGL’s and 46.4 mmcf/d of natural gas in 2004.  Fourth quarter production averaged 4,522 bbls/d of oil and 
NGL’s and 39.1 mmcf/d of natural gas, representing an annual decline of approximately 11% compared to fourth quarter 2004 
volumes.  
 
Production in France averaged 5,695 boe/d in 2005 a 5% decline compared to 6,018 boe/d production in 2004.  Fourth quarter 
production averaged 6,096 boe/d and benefited from a recent recompletion and tie-in of new wells in the Champotran/La Torche 
field.   
  
Production in the Netherlands, acquired in May 2004, averaged 4,812 boe/d for the year compared to 3,519 boe/d in 2004.  
Fourth quarter production from the Netherlands averaged 5,214 boe/d, representing an annual decline of approximately 7% 
compared to fourth quarter 2004 volumes. 
 
Production in Australia, acquired in March 2005, averaged 3,391 boe/d for the year.  Fourth quarter production in Australia 
averaged 4,294 boe/d. 
 
Total Trust production averaged 25,166 boe/d in 2005, compared to 22,990 boe/d in 2004.  Production declines in Canada and 
France were offset with the acquisition of production in Australia and the full year of production in the Netherlands.   
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 Year Ended December 31, 2005 Year Ended December 31, 2004 Year Ended December 31, 2003 
 Oil & Natural  Oil &  Natural  Oil & Natural 
 NGLs Gas Total NGLs Gas Total NGLs Gas Total 
 (bbls/d) (mmcf/d) (boe/d) (bbls/d) (mmcf/d) (boe/d) (bbls/d) (mmcf/d) (boe/d) 
Vermilion Energy Trust 
 Canada 4,870 38.39 11,268 5,723 46.38 13,453 6,678 59.96 16,671 
 France 5,478 1.30 5,695 5,763 1.53 6,018 6,018 1.51 6,271 
 Netherlands 1 28 28.70 4,812 13 21.03 3,519 - - - 
 Australia 2 3,391 - 3,391 - - - - - - 
 Total 13,767 68.39 25,166 11,499 68.94 22,990 12,696 61.47 22,942 
1   Effective from May 19th, 2004 
2 Effective from March 31, 2005 
 
2005 Quarterly Production (boe/d) Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 
Canada 11,978 10,996 11,075 11,035 
France 5,559 5,260 5,856 6,096 
Netherlands 5,225 3,789 5,018 5,214 
Australia 1 - 4,498 4,710 4,294 
Total 22,762 24,543 26,659 26,639 
1 Effective from March 31, 2005 
 
2004 Quarterly Production (boe/d) Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 
Canada 15,055 13,502 12,875 12,398 
France 6,262 5,991 5,869 5,954 
Netherlands 1 - 2,882 5,553 5,593 
Total 21,317 22,375 24,297 23,945 
1   Effective from May 19th, 2004 
 
CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 
 
Capital spending for the year totalled $300.1 million compared to $161.2 million spent in 2004.  Of this total, approximately $95.0 
million relates to the acquisition in Australia, $91.6 million relates to the Glacier acquisition with the remainder spent on drilling 
and development activities. 
 
Capital Expenditures ($m) 2005 2004 2003 
Land $    2,233 $      493 $    1,520 
Seismic 12,116 787 1,272 
Drilling and completion 43,929 34,469 47,440 
Production equipment and facilities 25,111 15,757 11,887 
Recompletions 21,163 9,999 12,861 
Capitalized exploration administration 267 1,670 2,061 
Drilling and development expenditures 104,819 63,175 77,041 
Property acquisitions (dispositions) 94,967 93,990  (1,294) 
Corporate acquisitions 91,613 - - 
Other 8,711 4,084 3,819 
  $300,110 $161,249 $  79,566 
 
Capital Expenditures by Country ($m) 2005 2004 2003 
Canada $141,022 $  31,722 $  33,511 
France 50,649 35,028 30,469 
Netherlands 12,434 94,499 - 
Australia 96,005 - - 
Trinidad - - 15,586 
  $300,110 $161,249 $79,566 
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FINANCIAL REVIEW 
 
The Trust (excluding Verenex Energy Inc. “Verenex”) generated funds from operations of $87.9 million ($1.29 per unit) in the 
fourth quarter of 2005, compared to $47.5 million ($0.72 per unit) in the fourth quarter of 2004.  The Trust’s distributions in the 
fourth quarter totaled $31.8 million ($0.51 per unit) for a payout ratio of 36%.  Cash flow (excluding Verenex) for the twelve 
months ended December 31, 2005 totaled $277.2 million ($4.07 per unit) compared to $169.8 million ($2.57 per unit) in the prior 
year.  The full year distributions in 2005 totaled $126.2 million compared to $122.6 million in 2004.  This represents a payout 
ratio of approximately 45% of total cash flow.  Development capital expenditures during the fourth quarter of 2005 (excluding 
Verenex) were $27.2 million bringing the full year total to $102.6 million ($50.7 million in 2004).  Vermilion took advantage of 
strong cash flow driven by high commodity prices to inject a further $25.2 million into the Trust’s reclamation fund, increasing the 
fund to $42.2 million.  Vermilion is committed to maintaining a source of funds available for abandonment and reclamation 
activities, such that future distribution and capital program decisions will not be impacted by these liabilities.  
 
Vermilion’s net debt as of December 31, 2005 was $244.9 million, less than 0.9 times trailing cash flow.  Financial derivatives put 
in place by the Trust late in 2002 to protect against a fall in oil prices expired at the end of 2005.   
In 2005, Vermilion recorded a cash cost of approximately $41 million related to these financial instruments.  Vermilion has 
changed its approach in its use of financial instruments and is currently using a combination of puts and collars to provide 
downside commodity price protection. 
 
CASH FLOW NETBACKS 
 
Cash flow was $278.2 million in 2005, up from $170.2 million in 2004.  A higher average wellhead price was recorded in 2005 as 
a result of a 34% increase in AECO pricing and a 37% increase in average WTI pricing compared with 2004. 
 
2005 Cash Flow ($/boe) Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 2005 2004 2003 
Oil and gas revenues $53.36 $52.90 $61.42 $62.87 $57.94 $43.21 $39.90 
Realized hedging losses (3.98 ) (4.29 ) (5.13 ) (4.36 ) (4.46) (3.73 ) (2.38) 
Royalties (net) (7.01 ) (9.40 ) (10.37 ) (10.94 ) (9.54) (7.54 ) (8.92) 
Transportation (1.43 ) (0.96 ) (0.82 ) (0.81 ) (0.99) (1.17 ) (1.24) 
Lifting costs (7.52 ) (8.52 ) (7.54 ) (7.99 ) (7.89) (6.63 ) (6.11) 
Operating netbacks 33.42  29.73  37.56  38.77  35.06  24.14  21.25 
General and administration (1.58 ) (1.65 ) (1.16 ) (1.39 ) (1.43) (1.59 ) (1.24) 
Reorganization costs -  -  -  -  -  -  (1.05) 
Interest (0.47 ) (0.54 ) (0.78 ) (0.90 ) (0.69) (0.37 ) (1.05) 
Current and capital taxes (3.40 ) (3.12 ) (3.95 ) (0.52 ) (2.71) (2.03 ) (0.59) 
Foreign exchange (0.08 ) (0.06 ) (0.13 ) (0.05 ) (0.08) 0.04  (0.03) 
Cash flow netbacks $27.89  $24.36  $31.54  $35.91  $30.15  $20.19  $17.29 
 
2004 Cash Flow ($/boe) Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 
Oil and gas revenues $41.71 $44.21 $43.79 $43.04 
Realized hedging losses (2.84 ) (3.34 ) (4.35 ) (4.23 ) 
Royalties (net) (9.67 ) (8.33 ) (6.74 ) (5.75 ) 
Transportation (1.43 ) (1.35 ) (0.99 ) (0.97 ) 
Lifting costs (6.16 ) (6.72 ) (6.86 ) (6.74 ) 
Operating netbacks 21.61  24.47  24.85  25.35  
General and administration (1.58 ) (1.67 ) (1.59 ) (1.53 ) 
Interest (0.69 ) (0.39 ) (0.17 ) (0.26 ) 
Current and capital taxes (1.24 ) (1.99 ) (2.81 ) (1.97 ) 
Foreign exchange -  0.05  0.09  - 
Cash flow netbacks $18.10  $20.47  $20.37  $21.59 
 
REVENUE 
 
Total revenues in 2005 were $529.9 million compared to $354.5 million in 2004.  Vermilion’s combined crude oil & NGL price 
was $64.79 per bbl for 2005, an increase of 37% over the $47.26 per bbl reported in 2004.  The natural gas price realized in 
2005 was $8.28 per mcf compared to $6.53 per mcf realized a year ago, a 27% year-over-year increase.    
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In the following chart, “Derivative instruments” is the amortization of the fair value loss of Vermilion’s hedges in place as of 
January 1, 2004. 
 Year Ended December 31 
($000’S EXCEPT PER BOE)   2005 2004 
Crude oil & NGL’s   $326,754 $199,060 
Per boe   $64.79 $47.26 
Natural gas   207,902 165,174 
Per mcf   $8.28 $6.53 
Combined   534,656 364,234 
Derivative instruments     (4,718 ) (9,709 ) 
Petroleum and natural gas revenue   $529,938 $354,525 
 
DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS 
 
Vermilion continues to manage its risk exposure through prudent commodity and currency economic hedging strategies.  
Vermilion has the following collars and puts in place at the end of 2005: 
   
Risk Management: Oil Funded Cost bbls/d US$/bbl  
Collar – WTI  
 Q1 2006 US$0.50-$1.00/bbl 1,250 $53.00 - $72.75 
 Q2 2006 US$1.50/bbl 250 $53.00 - $73.90 
Collar - BRENT 
 2006  US$1.00/bbl 1,000 $53.00 - $67.70 
 Q3 2006 US$1.00/bbl 250 $52.00 - $68.50 
 Q4 2006  US$1.50/bbl 250 $53.00 - $69.80 
 
Risk Management: Natural Gas Funded Cost GJ/d C$/GJ  
Collar 
 Q1 2006  $0.25/GJ 2,500 $9.50 - $16.00 
 Feb-Mar 2006  costless 2,500 $11.00 - $20.74 
 Apr-Oct 2006  $0.25/GJ 2,500 $8.00 - $15.00 
Put 
 Q1 2006  $0.23/GJ 5,000 $10.50 
 
The impact of Vermilion’s hedging program reduced cash netbacks by $4.46 per boe on a combined basis for the year ended 
2005 compared to an economic hedging loss of $3.73 per boe in 2004.  Oil hedging resulted in a $41.6 million cost for the year 
or $4.51 per boe.  For 2004, oil hedging resulted in a $34.1 million cost for the year or $4.04 per boe.  For the year the Trust 
recorded a net gain from its power hedges totalling $0.5 million or $0.05 per boe.  In 2004 a currency hedge gain of $3.3 million 
or $0.39 per boe was recorded. 
 
ROYALTIES 
 
Total royalties, net of ARTC, increased to $9.54 per boe in 2005 or 16% of sales compared with $7.54 per boe or 17% of sales in 
2004.  The increase on a per boe basis is due to the impact of higher commodity prices.  The decrease on a percentage basis is 
due to the fact there are no royalties paid in the Netherlands offset somewhat by a higher royalty rate in Australia.  Contributing 
to the lower percentage is the fact that gas royalties in Canada have reached a plateau as prices have increased beyond the 
maximum royalty calculation.  In France, royalties for the most part are calculated on a unit of production basis and rates do not 
react to price changes, therefore as prices increase, the royalties, as a percentage of sales, decline.  In Australia, royalties are 
reduced by capital reinvestment in the country.  For 2005, Vermilion’s capital program in Australia was minimal resulting in the 
Trust paying royalties at or near the maximum rate. 
 Year Ended December 31 
($000’S EXCEPT PER BOE)   2005 2004 
Crude oil & NGL’s   $61,322 $31,105 
Per boe   $12.16 $7.39 
Natural gas   26,679 32,450 
Per mcf   $1.06 $1.28 
Combined   $88,001 $63,555 
Per boe   $9.54 $7.54 
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OPERATING COSTS 
 
Operating costs increased to $7.89 per boe in 2005 from $6.63 per boe in 2004.  The increase in the dollar amount of operating 
costs over 2004 was due to the acquisition of higher cost assets in Australia.  In Canada, the significant activity levels in the 
industry combined with increased energy costs, have placed upward pressure on costs across the board.  When combined with 
a reduction in production volumes due primarily to plant turnarounds, year over year increases in costs per boe have been 
experienced.  In France, operating costs are down due to a reclassification of certain expenses in the fourth quarter of 2005.  In 
the Netherlands, operating costs are up due primarily to a reduction in production volumes and extensive plant maintenance in 
the second quarter of 2005.  Cost of operations in Australia averaged $9.09 per boe of production since acquiring the assets at 
the end of the first quarter. 
 
 Year Ended December 31 
($000’S EXCEPT PER BOE)   2005 2004 
Crude oil & NGL’s   $39,060 $30,632 
Per boe   $7.75 $7.27 
Natural gas   33,796 25,285 
Per mcf   $1.35 $1.00 
Combined   $72,856 $55,917 
Per boe   $7.89 $6.63 
 
TRANSPORTATION 
 
Transportation costs, as presented in the statement of earnings, are defined by the point of legal transfer of the product. 
Transportation costs are dependent upon where the product is sold, product split, location of properties, and industry 
transportation rates that are driven by supply and demand of available transport capacity.  For Canadian gas production, legal 
title transfers at the intersection of major pipelines (referred to as “the Hub”) whereas the majority of Vermilion’s Canadian oil 
production is sold at the wellhead.  The majority of Vermilion’s transportation costs are made up of boat charges incurred in the 
Aquitaine Basin in France where oil production is transported by tanker from Ambès shipping terminal in Bordeaux to Donges, 
France.  In Australia, oil is sold at the Wandoo B platform and in the Netherlands gas is sold at the plant gate, resulting in no 
transportation costs relating to Vermilion’s production in these countries.   
 
 Year Ended December 31 
($000’S EXCEPT PER BOE)   2005 2004 
Transportation   $9,136 $9,865 
Per boe   $0.99 $1.17 
 
GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES 
 
General and administration expenses for the year decreased to $1.43 per boe from $1.59 per boe in 2004.  The decrease per 
boe is a result of the higher production volumes experienced in 2005. 
 
 Year Ended December 31 
($000’S EXCEPT PER BOE)   2005 2004 
General and administration   $13,241 $13,410 
Per boe   $1.43 $1.59 
 
UNIT COMPENSATION EXPENSE 
 
A non-cash trust unit compensation expense of $1.52 per boe was recorded in 2005 compared to $0.80 per boe for 2004.  This 
non-cash amount relates to the value attributable to rights granted to officers, directors and employees under the Trust Unit 
Rights Incentive Plan (“Unit Rights Plan”) and the Trust Unit Award Plan (“Award Plan”).   
 
From inception of the unit rights incentive plan until January 1, 2005, the Trust applied the intrinsic value methodology based on 
the initial asessment that the number of uncertainties regarding the reduction in the strike price of the rights precluded a 
reasonable estimate of the fair value of the rights on the date of grant.   
 
Effective on January 1, 2005, the Trust prospectively applied the fair value based method of accounting for the rights plan. 
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In the fourth quarter of 2005 however, it has been determined that, in the circumstances, the fair value methodology could be 
applied since inception of the plan rather than the intrinsic value methodology.  The Trust has therefore computed a fair value 
estimate of the rights at the respective dates of grant and has retroactively restated its unit compensation expense back to the 
inception of the plan in 2003. 
 
In March 2005, the Board of Directors established the new Award Plan to replace the existing Unit Rights Plan.  The new Award 
Plan will result in directors, officers, employees and consultants of the Trust and its Affiliates being awarded a specified number 
of Restricted Units and the Units shall be designated as either a Restricted Time Based Award (“RTBA’s”) for which the number 
of awards is fixed or a Performance Based Award (“PBA’s”) for which the number of awards is variable.  Payment in respect of 
Restricted Units that have vested shall be made by delivering Units or corresponding cash value to the Grantee.  The fair value 
of the Awards will be recognized in earnings over the vesting period of the Awards outstanding.  
 
 Year Ended December 31 
($000’S EXCEPT PER BOE)   2005 2004 
    (Restated) 
Unit compensation expense   $14,000 $6,738 
Per boe   $1.52 $0.80 
 
INTEREST EXPENSE  
 
Interest expense increased to $0.69 per boe in 2005 from $0.37 per boe in 2004 as a result of higher average debt levels in 2005 
stemming from the purchase of the assets in the Netherlands in May of 2004, the Australia assets in the first quarter of 2005 and 
the Glacier acquisition in December 2005.  The Trust’s interest rates have remained steady over the year. 
 
 Year Ended December 31 
($000’S EXCEPT PER BOE)   2005 2004 
Interest   $6,331 $3,086 
Per boe   $0.69 $0.37 
 
DEPLETION, DEPRECIATION AND ACCRETION EXPENSES  
 
Depletion, depreciation and accretion expense increased to $13.23 per boe in 2005 from $11.57 per boe in 2004.   The increase 
is due mainly to the increase of finding and development costs in Canada and the increase in the asset retirement obligation, 
resulting primarily from the Australia acquisition. 
 
 Year Ended December 31 
($000’S EXCEPT PER BOE)   2005 2004 
Depletion, depreciation and accretion   $122,098 $97,540 
Per boe   $13.23 $11.57 
 
TAXES 
  
The Trust’s current tax provision has increased to $2.71 per boe in 2005 from $2.03 per boe in 2004 and is due primarily to the 
increase in earnings generated by strong commodity prices.  The current provision is based on an approximate $13.4 million tax 
liability in France, an approximate $3.6 million tax liability in the Netherlands and an approximate $7.4 million tax liability in 
Australia.  The tax liability in Australia was allocated to the purchase price for the period from January 1 to March 31, 2005 in 
accordance with the allocation of revenues and expenses related to the Australia assets for that same time period.  The 
Netherlands acquisition closed on May 19, 2004 resulting in only a partial tax payment in 2004 compared to a full period 
assessment this year.  In Canada, it is anticipated that there will be no current taxes due with the exception of capital taxes which 
are assessed on an annual basis.  The recovery in future income taxes is a result of the taxable portion of distribution payments 
made to unitholders.  In the Trust’s structure, payments are made between the operating company and the Trust transferring 
both income and future income tax liability to the unitholder. Therefore it is the opinion of management that no cash income taxes 
in Canada are expected to be paid by the operating company in the future, and as such, the future income tax liability recorded 
on the balance sheet related to Canadian operations will be recovered through earnings over time.   
 
 Year Ended December 31 
($000’S EXCEPT PER BOE)   2005 2004 
Current and capital tax   $25,007 $17,108 
Per boe   $2.71 $2.03 
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FOREIGN EXCHANGE 
 
A combined realized and unrealized foreign exchange loss of $0.12 per boe was recorded in 2005 with a gain of $0.16 per boe in 
2004.  The loss is mostly unrealized and relates to the impact of the strengthening Canadian dollar compared to the Euro on the 
foreign working capital. 
 
 Year Ended December 31 
($000’S EXCEPT PER BOE)   2005 2004 
Foreign exchange loss (gain)   $1,083 $(1,285) 
Per boe   $0.12 $(0.16) 
 
EARNINGS  
 
Net earnings from continuing operations in the year increased to $158.5 million or $2.57 per unit from $66.0 million or $1.10 per 
unit in 2004.  The increase in earnings is due mainly to the record commodity prices realized in the year as well as the full year 
impact of the Netherlands operations and the impact of the operations in Australia acquired in 2005. 
 
LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES 
 
Vermilion’s debt (net of working capital) on December 31, 2005 was $244.9 million.  Vermilion entered into an unsecured 
covenant based credit facility with a syndicate of chartered banks in July 2005.  This $410 million facility is comprised of a one 
year revolving period with a one year term to follow with a final settlement payment required at the end of the second year.   
 
Liquidity and Capital Resources 2005 2004 2003 
Debt and working capital ($m) $244,889 $  84,686 $131,498 
Bank facility ($m) $410,000 $240,000 $240,000 
Unused bank facility ($m) $165,111 $155,314 $108,502 
Debt-to-cash-flow ratio 1 0.88 0.50 0.87 
Debt-to-equity ratio 1 0.53 0.22 0.38 
1 Debt includes working capital 
 
Vermilion has a long-term and short-term need for capital.  Short-term working capital will be required to finance accounts 
receivable, crude oil inventory and other similar short-term assets.  Short-term capital may also be used from time to time to fund 
cash distributions to maintain consistent monthly cash distributions to unitholders of the Trust.  However, the acquisition and 
development of petroleum and natural gas properties requires large amounts of long-term capital.  There are essentially three 
components in financing the capital needs of Vermilion: debt, equity and internally generated cash. 
 
There is currently an active market for the equity financing of Canadian resource trusts.  Accordingly, any future significant 
acquisition of producing properties is expected to be financed through additional bank debt combined with the issuance of trust 
units. 
 
Internally generated cash is used primarily for distributions, internal capital requirements and contributions to the Trust’s 
reclamation fund.  Internal cash flow is significantly influenced by commodity prices.  Other risks include exchange rates, interest 
rates and marketing opportunities, among others.  For a thorough discussion of these risks and how they are managed by 
Vermilion, please see the section on Risk Management. 
 
RECLAMATION FUND 
 
Vermilion has established a reclamation fund for the ultimate payment of environmental and site restoration costs on its asset 
base.  The reclamation fund will be funded by Vermilion Resources Ltd. and/or its operating subsidiaries.  Contributions in 2005 
totalled $25.2 million.  Contributions are currently made on a barrel of oil equivalent of production basis in Canada, France the 
Netherlands, and Australia and are occasionally supplemented with lump sum contributions.  Contribution levels to the 
reclamation fund will be reviewed on a regular basis and will be adjusted when necessary to ensure reclamation obligations 
associated with the Trust’s assets will be substantially funded when the costs are forecast to be incurred. 
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ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATION 
 
At December 31, 2005, Vermilion had recorded an asset retirement obligation of $70.2 million for future abandonment and 
reclamation of its properties compared to $51.7 million in 2004.  The increase is due to the liabilities recorded as a function of the 
asset acquisition in Australia.    
 
DISTRIBUTIONS 
 
Vermilion maintained monthly distributions at $0.17 per unit for the year distributing a total of $126.2 million compared to $122.6 
million in 2004 before the impact of the Trust’s DRIP program.  Vermilion has maintained its distributions at $0.17 per month 
since its conversion to a trust, resulting in 35 continuous months of distributions at this level.  Of the distributions paid in the year, 
approximately 86% will be taxed in the hands of taxable Canadian unitholders’ as other income.  The balance, considered to be 
a return of capital, is tax deferred and will reduce the adjusted cost base of trust units held by unitholders’.   
 
The Trust defines distributable income as funds from operations.  For 2005, the Trust has paid out 45% of its distributable 
income (72% in 2004). 
 
UNITHOLDERS’ EQUITY 
 
During the year approximately 1.8 million units were issued on conversion of exchangeable shares, unit rights exercised, issued 
pursuant to the terms of the Trust’s bonus plan and unitholders’ participation in the distribution reinvestment plan.  Unitholders’ 
capital increased during the year by $26.6 million as a result of the issuance of those units and $4.2 million as a result of 
contributed surplus transfer on exercise of unit rights.  This increase in equity was offset by cash distributions of $126.2 million in 
the year. 
 
NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST – EXCHANGEABLE SHARES  
 
The Trust has recorded non-controlling interest attributed to the issued and outstanding exchangeable shares in accordance with 
accounting requirements pursuant to EIC-151 (see Note 2 of the consolidated financial statements for further discussion).  The 
intent of the new standard is that exchangeable shares of a subsidiary which are transferable to third parties, outside of the 
consolidated entity, represent a non-controlling interest in the subsidiary. 
 
The exchangeable shares are transferable to third parties. In all circumstances, including in the event of liquidation or insolvency, 
holders of exchangeable shares will receive trust units in exchange for their exchangeable shares and as a result the 
exchangeable shares and trust units are considered to be economically equivalent. Therefore, the Trust does not believe that 
there is a permanent non-controlling interest as all exchangeable shares will ultimately be exchanged for trust units by passage 
of time whereby the exchangeable shares will be redeemed for trust units. Consequently, as the exchangeable shares are 
exchanged for trust units over time, the non-controlling interest will decrease and eventually will be nil when all exchangeable 
shares have been exchanged for trust units on or before January 22, 2013.   
 
The non-controlling interest in 2005 of $38.8 million ($24.7 million in 2004) on the consolidated balance sheet represents the 
book value of exchangeable shares plus accumulated earnings attributable to the outstanding exchangeable shares. The 
reduction in 2005 and 2004 net income, respectively, of $14.4 million and $10.1 million, represents the net income attributable to 
the exchangeable shareholders for 2005 and 2004. As the exchangeable shares are converted to trust units, Unitholders' capital 
is increased for the fair value of the trust units issued.  
 
As at December 31, 2005 there were 4.6 million exchangeable shares outstanding at exchange ratio of 1.37836 whereby 6.4 
million trust units would be issuable upon conversion. The exchangeable shares can be converted into trust units or redeemed 
by the exchangeable share holder for trust units at any time. Vermilion may redeem all outstanding exchangeable shares on or 
before January 22, 2013 and may redeem the exchangeable shares at any time if the number of exchangeable shares 
outstanding falls below 500,000 shares. Vermilion may issue cash or trust units upon redemption of exchangeable shares and it 
is the intention to issue trust units upon redemption. 
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PROPOSED TRANSACTION 
 
On October 18, 2005, Vermilion announced that a wholly-owned subsidiary entered into an exclusive arrangement with a French 
subsidiary of Exxon Mobil Corporation, to negotiate the purchase of its 89.89% shareholding in Esso REP.  Any transaction 
would be subject to the parties entering into a definitive purchase and sale agreement which would be subject to the satisfaction 
of all conditions precedent, including due diligence and the receipt of all necessary regulatory approvals and which will require 
consultation with appropriate employee representative groups.   
 
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 
 
The Trust made a strategic decision to sell its interest in the Trinidad operations.  On May 6, 2004, the Trust completed the sale 
of the shares of its subsidiary, Aventura, for gross proceeds of $164.6 million.  As a result, the Trust realized an estimated $68.0 
million (net of tax) gain on the sale of shares, which was recorded in the second quarter.   
 
RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
Crude oil and natural gas exploration, production, acquisition and marketing operations involve a number of risks.  These risks 
include operational fluctuations in commodity prices, exchange rates, interest rates, exploration uncertainties, product demand, 
transportation restrictions and governmental regulatory changes. 
 
Vermilion considers its commodity price risk management program as a form of insurance that protects its cash flow and rate of 
return.  The primary objective of the risk management program is to support Vermilion’s distributions and its internal capital 
development program.  Maintenance of a strong financial position and a stable cash flow stream through the development of 
long-life reserves is key to mitigating business risks. 
 
To manage the adverse impact of significant movements in commodity prices, exchange rates and interest rates, Vermilion uses 
over-the-counter financial structures as well as fixed/collar structures as a part of physical natural gas sales.  Vermilion has strict 
controls and guidelines in place and enacts transactions only with counter parties that have high credit ratings. 
 
Vermilion maintains an insurance program consistent with industry practice to protect against losses from accidental destruction 
of assets, well blowouts, pollution and other potential business interruptions. 
 
CURRENCY RISK 
 
Vermilion’s primary exposure to currency risk comes from a revenue stream that is denominated in U.S. dollars.  Vermilion’s 
exposure to fluctuations in the Euro and Australian dollar is limited primarily to reinvestment and repatriation of funds and 
forward-sale contracts can be used to mitigate these risks.  The remaining cash flow from Vermilion’s international operations is 
reinvested in each country, creating a natural hedge to the working capital and cash flow stream when they are converted to 
Euros and Australian dollars. 
 
CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES  
 
The amounts recorded for depletion and depreciation of property, plant and equipment and the provision for future asset 
retirement obligations are based on estimates.  The ceiling test calculation is based on estimates of proved reserves, production 
rates, oil and natural gas prices, future costs and other relevant assumptions.  By their nature, these estimates are subject to 
measurement uncertainty and the effect on the consolidated financial statements from changes in such estimates in future years 
could be significant. 
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SENSITIVITIES 
 
Crude oil and natural gas prices may change significantly because of factors Vermilion cannot control.  The following table 
provides a summary of estimated sensitivities to price fluctuations for pro-forma production levels and expenses for the year 
ended December 31, 2006. 
 Cash Available for Distributions Cash Available 
 Per Unit and Exchangeable Shares for Distributions 
Change in crude oil price by Cdn$1.00/bbl $ 0.05 $ 3.2 million 
Change in natural gas price by Cdn$0.10/mcf $ 0.02 $ 1.3 million 
Change in interest rate by one point $ 0.03 $ 2.0 million 
Change in Cdn/U.S. foreign exchange rate by one point $ 0.05 $ 3.5 million 
Change in Cdn/Euro foreign exchange rate by one point $ 0.01 $ 0.8 million 
 
OFF BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS 
 
The Trust has certain lease agreements that are entered into in the normal course of operations.  All leases are treated as 
operating leases whereby the lease payments are included in operating expenses or G&A expenses depending on the nature of 
the lease.  No asset or liability value has been assigned to these leases in the balance sheet as of December 31, 2005. 
 
The Trust has not entered into any guarantee or off balance sheet arrangements that would adversely impact the Trust’s 
financial position or results of operations. 
 
ENVIRONMENT, HEALTH AND SAFETY 
 
Vermilion remains committed to conducting its activities in an environmentally responsible manner, protecting the health and 
safety of its employees and the public in every country in which it operates.  It is a condition of employment that Vermilion 
personnel work safely and in accordance with established regulations and procedures. 
 
In 2005, Vermilion remained committed to the principles of the Environment, Health and Safety Stewardship Program set out by 
the Canadian Association of Petroleum Producers (CAPP).  This voluntary initiative promotes continual improvement in the areas 
of environment, health and safety performance, supplemented by progress reports to stakeholders. 
 
Vermilion continued its commitment to protect land, water and air, as policies and procedures, demonstrating leadership in these 
areas, were maintained and further developed in 2005.  Examples of accomplishments during the year included:  
 
- Reducing long-term environmental liabilities through decommissioning, abandoning and reclaiming well leases and facilities; 
- Monitoring long-term liabilities through regular inspections; 
- Continuing reductions in flaring and greenhouse gas emissions; 
- Minimizing waste products by reducing, recycling and recovering; and 
- Continuing risk management efforts with detailed emergency-response planning. 
 
Vermilion is a member of several organizations concerned with environment, health and safety, including the Western Canadian 
Air Shed and numerous area co-operatives. 
 
In the area of stakeholder relations, Vermilion works to build long-term relationships with environmental stakeholders and 
communities. 
 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
 
Vermilion is committed to a high standard of corporate governance practices, a dedication that begins at Board level and extends 
throughout the Trust. We believe good corporate governance is in the best interest of our unitholders, and that successful 
companies are those that deliver growth and a competitive return along with a commitment to the environment, to the 
communities where they operate and to their employees. We comply with the objectives and guidelines relating to corporate 
governance adopted by the Toronto Stock Exchange. In addition, the Board monitors and considers the implementation of 
corporate governance standards proposed by various regulatory and non-regulatory authorities in Canada.  A full examination of 
our corporate governance policies will be provided in our annual Information Circular, which will be filed on SEDAR 
(www.sedar.com) and mailed to all unitholders on or before March 31, 2006. 
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SARBANES OXLEY UPDATE 
 
On July 31, 2002, the United States Congress enacted the Sarbanes Oxley Act (“SOX”) that applies to all companies registered 
with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”).   On March 2, 2005, the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) 
announced a one year extension of the compliance date for all foreign private issuers.  As a result of this extension, Vermilion is 
currently required to comply with section 404 of the SOX legislation on December 31, 2006.  Section 404 of the SOX legislation 
“Internal Controls Over Financial Reporting” requires that management identify, document, assess and remediate internal 
controls and issue an opinion on the effectiveness of internal controls surrounding the financial reporting process.  The Trust 
currently has a comprehensive plan and a dedicated team of individuals in place to execute the plan of meeting the SOX Section 
404 compliance date. 
 
DISCLOSURE CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES 
 
Vermilion’s officers have established and maintained disclosure controls and procedures and evaluated the effectiveness of 
these controls in conjunction with the Trust’s filings. 
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MANAGEMENT’S REPORT TO UNITHOLDERS 
 
 
The accompanying consolidated financial statements of Vermilion Energy Trust are the responsibility of management and have 
been approved by the Board of Directors of Vermilion Resources Ltd., on behalf of the Trust. The financial statements have been 
prepared in accordance with accounting policies detailed in the notes to the financial statements and are in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in Canada. Where necessary, management has made informed judgments and 
estimates of transactions that were not complete at the balance sheet date. Financial information throughout the Annual Report 
is consistent with the financial statements. 
 
Management ensures the integrity of the financial statements by maintaining high-quality systems of internal control. Procedures 
and policies are designed to provide reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded and transactions are properly recorded, 
and that the financial records are reliable for preparation of the financial statements. 
 
Deloitte & Touche LLP, the Trust’s external auditors, have conducted an examination of the consolidated financial statements in 
accordance with generally accepted auditing standards in Canada and have provided an independent opinion. 
 
The Board of Directors is responsible for ensuring that management fulfills its responsibility for financial reporting and internal 
control. The Board carries out this responsibility principally through the Audit Committee, which is appointed by the Board and is 
comprised entirely of independent Directors. The Committee meets periodically with management and the external auditors to 
satisfy itself that each party is properly discharging its responsibilities and to review the consolidated financial statements, the 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis and the external Auditors’ Report before they are presented to the Board of Directors. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Lorenzo Donadeo        Curtis W. Hicks 
President & Chief Executive Officer      Executive Vice President &  
February 21, 2006        Chief Financial Officer 
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS TO THE UNITHOLDERS 
 
 
We have audited the consolidated balance sheets of Vermilion Energy Trust (the “Trust”) as at December 31, 2005 and 2004 
and the consolidated statements of earnings and accumulated earnings and cash flows for the years then ended.  These 
financial statements are the responsibility of the Trust’s management.  Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these 
financial statements based on our audits. 
 
We conducted our audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards.  Those standards require that we 
plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.  
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.  An 
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. 
 
In our opinion, these consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Trust as 
at December 31, 2005 and 2004 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with 
Canadian generally accepted accounting principles. 
 
The Trust is not required to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting.  Our 
audit included consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Trust’s internal 
control over financial reporting.  Accordingly, we express no such opinion. 

 
 
Deloitte & Touche LLP 
Independent Registered Chartered Accountants  
Calgary, Alberta 
February 21, 2006 
 
 
COMMENTS BY INDEPENDENT REGISTERED CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS ON CANADA-UNITED STATES OF 
AMERICA REPORTING DIFFERENCE 
  
The standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) require the addition of an explanatory 
paragraph (following the opinion paragraph) when there has been a restatement of the financial statements as described in Note 
11 to the consolidated financial statements of Vermilion Energy Trust.  Our report to the unitholders dated February 21, 2006 is 
expressed in accordance with Canadian reporting standards, which do not require a reference to such changes in the Report of 
Independent Registered Chartered Accountants when the changes are properly accounted for and adequately disclosed in the 
financial statements. 

 
 
Deloitte & Touche LLP 
Independent Registered Chartered Accountants 
Calgary, Alberta 
February 21, 2006 
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Consolidated Balance Sheets 
December 31  
(THOUSANDS OF CANADIAN DOLLARS) 
    2005   2004 
      (Restated Note 11) 
ASSETS  
CURRENT 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 42,777  $ 65,031 
Accounts receivable  75,639   54,044 
Crude oil inventory  10,279   4,468 

 Fair value of derivative instruments (Note 13)  1,166   68 
 Prepaid expenses and other  9,387   5,022 
    139,248   128,633 
Deferred charges for derivative instruments (Note 13)  -   4,718 
Long-term investment (Note 4)  19,096   5,398 
Reclamation fund (Note 6)  42,198   17,016 
Goodwill (Note 4)  19,840   - 
Capital assets (Note 5)  891,357   688,837 
   $ 1,111,739  $ 844,602 
 
LIABILITIES 
CURRENT 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 90,422  $ 85,837 
Distributions payable to unitholders  10,626   10,320  

 Income taxes payable  11,607   23,798 
 Fair value of derivative instruments (Note 13)  383   21,678 
    113,038   141,633 
Long-term debt (Note 7)  271,099   75,014 
Asset retirement obligation (Note 6)  70,214   51,688 
Future income taxes (Note 8)  160,475   145,680 
    614,826   414,015 
NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST (Note 4)  -   16,257 
NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST – Exchangeable Shares (Note 10)  38,760   24,686 
  
UNITHOLDERS’ EQUITY 

Unitholders’ capital (Note 9)  274,813   244,015 
Contributed surplus (Note 9)  14,566   9,136 
Accumulated earnings  516,514   358,043 

 Accumulated cash distributions  (347,740 )  (221,550 ) 
    458,153   389,644 
   $ 1,111,739  $ 844,602 
 
 
 
APPROVED BY THE BOARD 
 
 
 
Joseph F. Killi, Director Lorenzo Donadeo, Director 
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Consolidated Statements of Earnings and Accumulated Earnings 
Years Ended December 31  
(THOUSANDS OF CANADIAN DOLLARS, EXCEPT UNIT AND PER UNIT AMOUNTS) 
    2005   2004 
      (Restated Note 11) 
REVENUE 

Petroleum and natural gas revenue (Note 13) $ 529,938  $ 354,525 
 Royalties (net)  88,001   63,555 
    441,937   290,970 
 
EXPENSES 

Production  72,856   55,917 
Transportation  9,136   9,865 
Unit compensation (Note 11)  14,000   6,738 
Loss on derivative instruments (Note 13)  18,787   38,597 
Interest on long-term debt  6,331   3,086 
General and administration  13,241   13,410 
Foreign exchange loss (gain)  1,083   (1,285 ) 

 Depletion, depreciation and accretion  122,098   97,540 
    257,532   223,868 
EARNINGS BEFORE INCOME TAXES, OTHER ITEMS AND  
 DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS  184,405   67,102 
 
INCOME TAXES (RECOVERY) (NOTE 8) 

Future  (12,050 )  (21,033 ) 
 Current and capital  25,007   17,108 
    12,957   (3,925 ) 
OTHER ITEMS 
 Non-controlling interest – exchangeable shares (Note 10)  14,399   5,314 
 Non-controlling interest (Note 4)  (1,159 )  (338 ) 
 Equity in (gain) losses of affiliates (Note 4)  (263 )  41 
    12,977   5,017 
NET EARNINGS FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS  158,471   66,010 
 Net earnings from discontinued operations (Note 3)  -   66,286 
 Non-controlling interest - exchangeable shares (Note 10)  -   4,783 
NET EARNINGS  158,471   127,513 
 
ACCUMULATED EARNINGS, BEGINNING OF YEAR, AS PREVIOUSLY REPORTED  337,186   228,269 
 Prior period adjustment (Note 11)  20,857   2,261 
 Accumulated earnings, beginning of year, as restated  358,043   230,530 
ACCUMULATED EARNINGS, END OF YEAR $ 516,514  $ 358,043 
 
NET EARNINGS FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS PER TRUST UNIT (NOTE 12) 
 Basic  $ 2.57  $ 1.10 
 Diluted $ 2.49  $ 1.07 
 
NET EARNINGS PER TRUST UNIT (NOTE 12) 

Basic  $ 2.57  $ 2.12 
 Diluted $ 2.49  $ 2.07 
 
WEIGHTED-AVERAGE TRUST UNITS OUTSTANDING (NOTE 12) 

Basic   61,755,432   60,166,163 
 Diluted  69,395,074   66,375,229 
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 
Years Ended December 31 
(THOUSANDS OF CANADIAN DOLLARS) 
    2005   2004 
      (Restated Note 11) 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS PROVIDED BY (USED IN): 
 
OPERATING 
Net earnings $ 158,471  $ 127,513 
Items not affecting cash: 
 Depletion, depreciation and accretion  122,098   97,540 
 Amortization of deferred charges for derivative instruments  4,718   9,709 
 Unrealized (gain) loss on derivative instruments  (22,393 )  7,183 
 Unit compensation  14,000   6,738 
 Equity in (gain) losses of affiliates  (263 )  41 
 Unrealized foreign exchange loss (gain)   344   (985 ) 
 Non-controlling interest  (1,159 )  (338 ) 
 Non-controlling interest – exchangeable shares  14,399   10,097 
 Earnings from discontinued operations  -   (66,286 ) 
 Future income taxes recovery  (12,050 )  (21,033 ) 
Funds from operations  278,165   170,179 
Asset retirement costs incurred  (948 )  (1,281 ) 
Changes in non-cash operating working capital (Note 14)  (32,101 )  22,479 
    245,116   191,377 
 
INVESTING 

Proceeds on sale of Aventura (Note 3)  -   164,585 
Drilling and development of petroleum and natural gas properties  (113,530 )  (67,259 ) 
Cash acquired through acquisition of subsidiary  -   62 
Acquisition of petroleum and natural gas properties (Note 4)  (90,318 )  (72,985 ) 
Corporate acquisition (Note 4)  (87,036 )  - 
Long-term investment (Note 4)  (12,299 )  - 
Contributions to reclamation fund  (25,183 )  (15,338 )  

 Changes in non-cash investing working capital (Note 14)  (7,068 )  (37,131 ) 
    (335,434 )  (28,066 ) 
 
FINANCING 

Issue of trust units for cash, net of unit issue costs  9,147   8,836 
Cash distributions  (125,884 )  (122,366 ) 
Increase (decrease) in long-term debt  196,084   (60,544 ) 
Issue of trust units pursuant to distribution reinvestment plan  15,850   6,662 
Cash acquired on shares issued by subsidiary, net of share issue costs  424   24,206 

 Changes in non-cash financing working capital (Note 14)  (584 )  104 
    95,037   (143,102 ) 
Foreign exchange (loss) gain on cash held in foreign currencies  (9,062 )  502 
 
NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS  (4,343 )  20,711 
IMPACT ON CASH RESULTING FROM DE-CONSOLIDATION OF VERENEX (NOTE 4) (17,911 )  - 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR  65,031   44,320 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR $ 42,777  $ 65,031 
 
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - CASH PAYMENTS 
 Interest paid $ 8,612  $ 3,512 
 Income taxes paid $ 26,190  $ 14,208 
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements - Years Ended December 31  
(TABULAR AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF CANADIAN DOLLARS, EXCEPT UNIT AND PER UNIT AMOUNTS) 
 
1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION 
 
Vermilion Energy Trust (the “Trust” or “Vermilion”) was established on January 22, 2003, under a Plan of Arrangement entered 
into by the Trust, Vermilion Resources Ltd. (“Resources” or the “Company”), Clear Energy Inc. (“Clear”) and Vermilion 
Acquisition Ltd. The Trust is an open-end unincorporated investment trust governed by the laws of the Province of Alberta and 
created pursuant to a trust indenture (“Trust Indenture”). Computershare Trust Company of Canada has been appointed trustee 
under the Trust Indenture. The beneficiaries of the Trust are the holders of trust units. 
 
As a result of the completion of the Plan of Arrangement, former holders of common shares of the Company received units of the 
Trust or exchangeable shares of the Company or a combination thereof, in accordance with the elections made by such holders, 
and common shares of Clear. The Company became a subsidiary of the Trust. The Company is actively engaged in the business 
of oil and natural gas development, acquisition and production. 
 
Prior to the Plan of Arrangement on January 22, 2003, the consolidated financial statements included the accounts of the 
Company and its subsidiaries. After giving effect to the Plan of Arrangement, the consolidated financial statements have been 
prepared on a continuity of interests basis, which recognizes the Trust as the successor entity to Resources.  
 
2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
Principles of Consolidation 
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting 
principles and include the accounts of the Trust and its subsidiaries on a consolidated basis, all of which are wholly owned.     
Inter-company account balances and transactions are eliminated upon consolidation.  Verenex Energy Inc. (“Verenex”) (Note 4) 
is accounted for on the equity basis since December 15, 2005. 
 
Petroleum and Natural Gas Operations 
The Trust uses the full-cost method of accounting for petroleum and natural gas operations and capitalizes all exploration and 
development costs on a country-by-country basis. These costs include land acquisition, geological and geophysical costs, drilling 
(including related overhead) on producing and non-producing properties and other carrying charges on unproven properties. 
Proceeds of disposition are applied against the cost pools with no gain or loss recognized except where the disposition results in 
a greater than 20% change in the rate of depletion and depreciation. 
 
Amortization of these costs plus future development costs to develop proved reserves is done on a country-by-country basis and 
is calculated on the unit-of-production method based on estimated proved reserves, before royalties, as determined by 
independent engineers. The cost of significant unevaluated properties is excluded from the depletion and depreciation base. For 
purposes of depletion and depreciation calculations, oil and gas reserves are converted to a common unit of measure on the 
basis of their relative energy content based on a conversion ratio of six thousand cubic feet of natural gas to a barrel of oil. 
 
The carrying value of the Trust’s petroleum and natural gas properties is limited to the sum of the undiscounted cash flows 
expected to result from the Trust’s proved reserves on a country by country basis.  If the carrying value is not fully recoverable, 
the amount of impairment is measured by comparing the carrying amounts of the capital assets to an amount equal to the 
estimated net present value of future cash flows from proved plus probable reserves (the “ceiling test”).  This calculation 
incorporates risks and uncertainties in the expected future cash flows which are discounted using a risk-free rate.  Any excess 
carrying value above the net present value of the future cash flows would be recorded as a permanent impairment charged to 
earnings. 
 
Substantially all of the exploration, development and production activities of the Trust are conducted jointly with others and, 
accordingly, the consolidated financial statements reflect only the Trust’s proportionate interest in such activities. 
 
The Trust recognizes the estimated liability associated with an asset retirement obligation (“ARO”) in the consolidated financial 
statements at the time the liability is incurred.  The estimated fair value of the ARO is recorded as a long term liability, with a 
corresponding increase in the carrying amount of the related asset.  The capitalized amount is depleted on a unit-of-production 
method over the life of the proved reserves.  The liability amount is increased each reporting period due to the passage of time 
and the amount of accretion is charged to earnings in the period.  The ARO can also increase or decrease due to changes in the 
estimates of timing of cash flows or changes in the original estimated undiscounted cost.  Actual costs incurred upon settlement 
of the ARO are charged against the ARO to the extent of the liability recorded. 
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2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
The amounts recorded for depletion and depreciation of property, plant and equipment are based on estimates.  The ceiling test 
calculation is based on the sum of the undiscounted cash flows expected to result from the Trust’s proved reserves.  The asset 
retirement obligation is based on liabilities related to legal obligations associated with future retirement of property, plant and 
equipment.  By their nature, these estimates are subject to measurement uncertainty, and the effect on the consolidated financial 
statements from changes in such estimates in future years could be significant. 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents include monies on deposit and short-term investments accounted for at cost that have an original 
maturity date of not more than 90 days. 
 
Furniture and Equipment 
Furniture and equipment are recorded at cost and are being amortized on a declining-balance basis at rates of 20% to 50% per 
year. 
 
Crude Oil Inventories 
Inventories of crude oil, consisting of production awaiting shipment at the Ambès Shipping Terminal in France and the Wandoo B 
platform in Australia, are valued at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost is determined on a weighted-average basis. 
 
Long-Term Investment 
Investments in which the Trust has significant influence are accounted for using the equity basis of accounting whereby the 
investment cost is increased or decreased for the Trust’s ownership percentage of net earnings or loss and reduced by dividends 
paid to the Trust. 
 
The Trust reviews and evaluates the carrying value of its investment annually.  More frequent reviews are conducted as 
conditions necessitate.  In the event a decrease in the value of the investment is other than a temporary decline, the investment 
is written down to recognize the loss. 
 
Goodwill 
Goodwill is tested for impairment annually by comparing the fair value of the reporting unit with its carrying amount.  If the 
carrying amount exceeds the fair value, an impairment loss will be recognized for the excess. 
 
Revenue Recognition 
Revenues associated with the sale of crude oil, natural gas and liquids are recorded when title passes to the customer. 
 
Deferred Charges for Derivative Financial Instruments 
Deferred charges for derivative financial instruments is the fair value of all outstanding derivative financial instruments at January 
1, 2004 that were recorded on the consolidated balance sheet with an offsetting amount to deferred charges.  The deferred 
charge was recognized into revenue over the life of the associated contracts.   
 
Derivative Financial Instruments 
The Trust has not elected to designate any of its price risk management activities as accounting hedges under Accounting 
Guideline 13, Hedging Relationships (“AcG-13”) and is accounting for all these derivative financial instruments using the fair 
value method.  The Trust uses derivative financial instruments to manage exposures to fluctuations in commodity prices, interest 
rates and foreign currency exchange rates. All transactions of this nature entered into by the Trust are related to an underlying 
financial position or to future petroleum and natural gas production. The Trust does not use derivative financial instruments for 
trading purposes.   The fair value of derivative financial instruments are recorded in the consolidated balance sheets with 
changes in fair value of derivative financial instruments recognized in earnings during the period. 
 
Unit Compensation 
The Trust has unit-based long-term compensation plans for directors, officers and employees of the Trust and its subsidiaries. 
Unit compensation expense is measured based on the fair value of the rights at the date of grant (see Note 11 for details of a 
change in the valuation used to determine unit based compensation expense).  Unit compensation expense associated with 
rights granted is deferred and recognized in earnings over the vesting period of the Plans with a corresponding increase or 
decrease in contributed surplus.    
 



2005 Annual Report – Vermilion Energy Trust   24 

2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
Consideration paid upon the exercise of the rights together with the amount previously recognized in contributed surplus is 
recorded as an increase in unitholders’ capital.   The Trust has not incorporated an estimated forfeiture rate for rights that will not 
vest, rather, the Trust accounts for forfeitures as they occur.   See Note 11 for a description of the long-term unit compensation 
plans. 
 
Per-unit Amounts 
Net earnings per unit are calculated using the weighted-average number of units outstanding during the period.  Diluted net 
earnings per unit are calculated using the treasury stock method to determine the dilutive effect of unit-based compensation and 
include the weighted-average number of exchangeable shares outstanding converted at the exchange ratio at the end of each 
period.  The treasury stock method assumes that the proceeds received from the exercise of “in the money” trust unit rights are 
used to repurchase units at the average market price during the period and include trust unit awards outstanding converted at a 
performance factor of one. 
 
Foreign Currency Translation 
Foreign currency balances of foreign subsidiaries, which are considered to be integrated, are translated on the following basis: 
 
- Monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the rates of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet dates; 
- Non-monetary assets, liabilities and related depreciation and depletion expense are translated at historical rates; and 
- Sales, other revenues, royalties and all other expenses are translated at the average rate of exchange during the month in 

which they are recognized. 
 
Any resulting foreign exchange gains and losses are included in earnings. 
 
Reclamation Fund 
A reclamation fund has been set up by the Trust to ensure that cash is available to carry out future abandonment and 
reclamation work on wells, plants and facilities. Contributions are currently made on a barrel of oil equivalent of production basis 
in Canada, France, the Netherlands and Australia and are occasionally supplemented with lump sum contributions.   
 
Income Taxes 
The Trust is a taxable entity under the Income Tax Act (Canada) and is taxable only on income that is not distributed or 
distributable to the unitholders. As the Trust allocates all of its Canadian taxable income to the unitholders in accordance with the 
Trust Indenture, and meets the requirements of the Income Tax Act (Canada) applicable to the Trust, no provision for Canadian 
income tax expense has been made in the Trust. 
 
In the Trust structure, payments are made between the Company and the Trust that result in the transferring of taxable income 
from the Company to individual unitholders. These payments may reduce future income tax liabilities previously recorded by the 
Company that would be recognized as a recovery of income tax in the period incurred. 
 
Income taxes are calculated in the subsidiary companies using the liability method of accounting for income taxes. Under this 
method, income tax liabilities and assets are recognized for the estimated tax consequences attributable to temporary 
differences between the amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements of the Trust and their respective underlying 
tax base, using substantively enacted income tax rates in the respective tax jurisdictions that will be in effect when the 
differences are expected to reverse.  The effect of a change in income tax rates on future tax liabilities and assets is recognized 
in income in the period in which a change occurs. 
 
The Trust is subject to current income taxes in France, the Netherlands and Australia based on the enacted tax legislation of 
each respective country. 
 
Exchangeable Shares - Non-controlling Interest 
The exchangeable shares issued pursuant to the Plan of Arrangement were initially recorded at their pro-rata percentage of the 
carrying value of Resources equity.  When the exchangeable shares are converted into trust units, the conversion is recorded as 
an acquisition of the non-controlling interest at fair value and is accounted for as a step acquisition.  Upon conversion of the 
exchangeable shares, the fair value of the trust units issued is recorded in unitholders’ capital, and the difference between the 
carrying value of the non-controlling interest and the fair value of the trust units is recorded as capital assets. 
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2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
Distributions 
The Trust makes monthly distributions of its distributable cash to unitholders of record on the last day of each calendar month. 
Pursuant to the Trust’s policy, it will pay distributions to its unitholders subject to satisfying its financing covenants, making loan 
repayments and, if applicable, funding future asset retirement obligations. 
 
Variable Interest Entities 
The Trust has applied Accounting Guideline 15, Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities.  The guideline addresses 
consolidation of variable interest entities to which the usual condition for consolidation does not apply.  This guideline does not 
impact the Trust’s consolidated financial statements. 
 
Discontinued Operations 
On May 6, 2004, the Trust completed the sale of its subsidiary, Aventura.  Accordingly, these consolidated financial statements 
include the accounts of the Trust and its remaining subsidiaries.  The results of operations of Aventura previously reported in the 
Trust’s annual audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2004 have been restated and are now 
reported as discontinued operations (Note 3). 
 
3. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS  
 
On May 6, 2004, the Trust completed the sale of the shares of its subsidiary, Aventura, for gross proceeds of $164.6 million 
which was accounted for as follows: 
 
Gross sale proceeds $ 164,585 
Carrying value of investment in Aventura       82,388 
Gain on sale of Aventura    82,197 
Future income taxes  14,233 
Net gain on sale of Aventura $   67,964 
 
The Trust restated its prior period financial statements to reflect Aventura’s assets and liabilities as discontinued operations and 
to separately classify the operating results of Aventura from the operating results of continuing operations. 
 
The net earnings (loss) from discontinued operations disclosed in the Consolidated Statements of Earnings and Accumulated 
Earnings includes the following: 
 
   2004 
Revenue    $   4,121 
Loss before income taxes    $ (1,938) 
Income taxes (recovery)     (260) 
Loss from discontinued operations     (1,678) 
Net gain on sale     67,964 
    $ 66,286 
 
4.  INVESTMENTS AND ACQUISITIONS  
 
a) Verenex Energy Inc.  

On June 29, 2004 Verenex Energy Inc. (“Private Verenex”), a subsidiary of the Trust, amalgamated with Prairie Fire Oil & Gas 
Ltd. (“Prairie Fire”).  The common shares of Prairie Fire were exchanged for common shares of the resulting issuer, Verenex 
Energy Inc. (“Verenex”) on the basis of one Verenex share for every 25 Prairie Fire shares, and each Private Verenex share 
was exchanged for one common share of Verenex.  As a result of the share exchange control passed to Verenex as it owns 
the majority of the issued and outstanding shares of the combined entity.  Accounting principles applicable to reverse 
takeovers have been applied to record this acquisition.  Net assets of Prairie Fire were deemed to have been purchased by 
Verenex, at fair value, through the exchange of capital. 
 
In conjunction with the transaction described above, Vermilion sold to Verenex exploration interests in France and a royalty on 
producing oil and gas assets in Alberta in exchange for 10 million common shares.   The sale of assets were recorded at the 
underlying cost of the assets to the Trust due to the related party nature of the transaction.  The Trust also subscribed for 2 
million of common shares at a price of $2.50 per share through Verenex’s $32.6 million private placement on June 29, 2004. 
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4.  INVESTMENTS AND ACQUISITIONS (Continued) 
 

On December 15, 2005 Verenex completed a $26 million private placement in which Vermilion subscribed for 3.1 million 
shares at a price of $3.20 per share, representing 38% of the private placement.  The Trust’s equity interest in Verenex was 
then reduced to 49% from 53%.   
 
Effective December 15, 2005, the Trust discontinued consolidating the financial results of Verenex, as the Trust was no longer 
considered to control Verenex.  The investment in Verenex has since been accounted for following the equity basis of 
accounting.  Comparative figures have not been restated. 
 
The impact of no longer consolidating Verenex had the following effect on the Trust’s December 31, 2005 balance sheet: 
 
(000’s) Increase (Decrease) 
Current assets $   (36,344) 
Capital assets  (15,951) 
Current liabilities  (2,716) 
Non-controlling interest  (26,948) 
Contributed surplus  (3,591) 
Initial investment in Verenex  19,040 
Equity in income of affiliate from December 15 to December 31, 2005  56 
Investment in Verenex at December 31, 2005 $ 19,096 

 
b) Glacier Energy Limited (“Glacier”)  

On June 16, 2004, the Trust acquired 5.4 million shares of Glacier for consideration of 50% of the Trust’s working interest in 
the coalbed methane and shallow gas rights over certain of its lands.  On June 20, 2005, the Trust acquired an additional 0.9 
million shares of Glacier at a price of $2.50 per share as part of a private placement completed by Glacier.   
 
On December 7, 2005, the Trust acquired the outstanding shares of Glacier, not already owned by the Trust, for total cash 
consideration of $87.0 million.  Equity income of affliate of $0.2 million has been recorded by the Trust up to December 7, 
2005.  The acquisition has been accounted for using the purchase method of accounting, effective from December 7, 2005 as 
follows: 
 
Allocation of purchase price: First Purchase Second Purchase Total 
Capital assets $ 7,903  $ 98,918  $   106,821 
Goodwill  -   19,840   19,840 
Future income taxes  -   (26,845 )  (26,845) 
Asset retirement obligation  -   (300 )  (300) 
 $ 7,903   91,613   99,516 
Investment in Glacier  (7,903 )  -   (7,903) 
  -   91,613   91,613 
Working capital  -   (4,577 )  (4,577) 
Cash paid $ -  $ 87,036  $ 87,036 
 

c) Australia Acquisition 
 On March 31, 2005, the Trust acquired $95.0 million of producing properties in Australia.  Details are as follows: 

  
Petroleum and natural gas assets and equipment $   113,840 
Asset retirement obligation  (18,873) 
  94,967 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities  (4,649) 
Cash paid $ 90,318 
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4.  INVESTMENTS AND ACQUISITIONS (Continued) 
 
d) Netherlands Acquisition 

On May 19, 2004, the Trust acquired producing properties in the Netherlands. The closing cost, after adjustments, on May 19, 
2004 was $64.5 million.  Details are as follows:   
 
Petroleum and natural gas assets and equipment $ 119,355 
Asset retirement obligation  (33,876 ) 
  85,479 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities  (21,005 ) 
Cash paid $ 64,474   

 
5.  CAPITAL ASSETS 
  Accumulated Depletion,   
   Depreciation and Net 
2005  Cost Amortization Book Value 
Petroleum and natural gas properties and equipment $ 1,393,053  $ 504,094  $ 888,959 
Furniture and equipment  7,566   5,168   2,398 
  $ 1,400,619  $ 509,262  $ 891,357 
 
  Accumulated Depletion,   
   Depreciation and Net 
2004  Cost Amortization Book Value 
Petroleum and natural gas properties and equipment $ 1,079,692  $ 393,372  $ 686,320 
Furniture and equipment  6,855   4,338   2,517 
  $ 1,086,547  $ 397,710  $ 688,837 
 
As at December 31, 2005 and 2004, no costs for undeveloped properties have been excluded from the depletion and 
depreciation calculation. During the year, the Trust capitalized $0.3 million (2004-$1.7 million) of overhead costs related to 
exploration and development activities. 
 
The Trust performed a ceiling test calculation at December 31, 2005 to assess the recoverable value of petroleum and natural 
gas properties and equipment.  Based on the calculation, the present value of future net revenues from the Trust’s proved 
reserves exceeded the carrying value of the Trust’s petroleum and natural gas properties and equipment at December 31, 2005.   
 
The benchmark prices used in the calculation are as follows: 
 
CDN$/BOE Canada France  Netherlands Australia 
2006 $59.79 $59.65 $48.90 $60.92 
2007 $56.39 $57.71 $48.11 $58.79 
2008 $51.31 $53.18 $45.46 $54.51 
2009 $48.09 $49.78 $42.40 $51.30 
2010 $46.40 $48.04 $40.42 $49.70 
Average remainder $48.59 $50.23 $40.84 $50.92 
 
6.  ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATION 
 
The total future asset retirement obligation was estimated by management based on the Trust’s net ownership interest in all 
wells and facilities, estimated costs to abandon and reclaim the wells and facilities and the estimated timing of the costs to be 
incurred in future periods.  The Trust has estimated the net present value of its asset retirement obligations to be $70.2 million as 
at December 31, 2005 (2004 – $51.7 million) based on a total undiscounted future liability of $236.7 million.  These payments are 
expected to be made over the next 49 years with most coming within the time frame of 25-30 years.  The Trust used a credit 
adjusted risk free rate of 8% and an inflation rate of 1.5% to calculate the present value of the asset retirement obligation. 
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6.  ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATION (Continued) 
 
The following table reconciles the Trust’s total asset retirement obligation: 
 2005  2004 
Carrying amount, beginning of period $ 51,688  $ 15,570 
Increase in liabilities in the period 19,656  35,653 
Disposition of liabilities in the period (948 ) (1,281) 
Change in estimate 3,089  - 
Accretion expense 4,935  2,261 
Foreign exchange (8,206 ) (515) 
Carrying amount, end of period $ 70,214  $ 51,688 
 
The Trust has set aside funds for the future payment of its estimated asset retirement obligations.  In 2005, the Trust contributed 
$25.2 million (2004 - $15.3 million) to the reclamation fund, including earnings on the fund balance. 
 
7.  LONG-TERM DEBT 
 
As at December 31, 2005, the Trust had an unsecured covenant based credit facility consisting of a revolving term loan in the 
amount of $410 million.  The revolving period under the term loan is expected to expire in July 2006 and may be extended for an 
additional period of up to 364 days at the option of the lender.  If the lenders convert the revolving credit facility to a non-revolving 
credit facility, the amounts outstanding under the facility become repayable 12 months after the end of the revolving period.  
Various borrowing options are available under the facility including prime rate based advances and bankers’ acceptance loans. 
 
8.  FUTURE INCOME TAXES 
 
The components of the future income tax liability at December 31, 2005 and 2004 are as follows: 
 2005  2004 
Capital assets $ 185,954  $ 163,619 
Asset retirement obligation  (25,409 )  (17,626 )  
Share issue costs  (70 )  (313 ) 
 $ 160,475  $ 145,680 
 
The provision for income tax differs from the amount that would have been expected if the reported earnings had been subject 
only to the statutory Canadian income tax rate of 37.62% (2004 – 38.87%), as follows: 
 
 2005  2004 
     (Restated) 
Earnings before income taxes, other items and discontinued operations $ 184,405  $ 67,102 
Canadian corporate tax rate  37.62%   38.87% 
Expected tax expense  69,373   26,083 
Increase (decrease) in taxes resulting from: 
 Income attributable to the unitholders  (40,971 )  (40,272 ) 
 Non-deductible Crown payments  10,344   12,628 
 Resource allowance  (8,244 )  (8,378 ) 
 Foreign tax rate differentials*  (2,689 )  861 
 Statutory rate changes  -   (5,836 ) 
 Capital taxes  901   525  
 Unit compensation expense  3,792   2,248 
 France tax assessments  -   7,090 
 Pool variances  (3,781 )  1,206 
 Foreign exchange  (16,539 )  (789 ) 
 Other  771   709 
Provision for (recovery of) income taxes $ 12,957  $ (3,925 ) 
* The corporate tax rate in France is 34.8%, 41% in the Netherlands and 30% in Australia 
 
At December 31, 2005, the Trust had approximately $202.3 million (2004 - $178.9 million) of tax deductions for Canadian income 
tax purposes, approximately $73.6 million (2004 - $56.5 million) of tax deductions for income tax purposes in France, 
approximately $61.5 million (2004 - $71.4 million) of tax deductions for income tax purposes in the Netherlands and 
approximately $68.4 million of tax deductions for income tax purposes in Australia. 
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9.  UNITHOLDERS’ CAPITAL AND CONTRIBUTED SURPLUS 
 
The Trust is authorized to issue an unlimited number of units of the Trust.  Upon conversion to a Trust, 6.0 million exchangeable 
shares of the Company were issued. 
 
The exchangeable shares are convertible into trust units based on the exchange ratio, which is adjusted monthly to reflect the 
distribution paid on the trust units. Cash distributions are not paid on the exchangeable shares.  On the 10th anniversary of the 
issuance of the exchangeable shares, subject to extension of such date by the Board of Directors of the Company, the 
exchangeable shares will be redeemed for trust units on the basis of an exchange ratio as at the last business day prior to the 
redemption date (see Note 10). 
 
The Trust established a Distribution Reinvestment Plan (“DRIP”) in conjunction with the Trust’s transfer agent to provide the 
option for unitholders to reinvest cash distributions into additional trust units issued from treasury. In 2005, the Trust issued 0.7 
million units for proceeds of $15.9 million (2004 – 0.4 million units for proceeds of $6.7 million). 
 
 Number of Units  Amount 
TRUST UNITS  (Restated Note 11) 
Balance as at December 31, 2003 59,208,592  $ 221,858 
Distribution reinvestment plan      382,692      6,662 
Issued on conversion of exchangeable shares 209,846      3,204 
Transfer from contributed surplus on unit right exercise (restated Note 11) -   3,456 
Trust units issued for bonus plan 49,630   825 
Unit rights exercised          856,900           8,010 
Balance as at December 31, 2004 (restated Note 11) 60,707,660   244,015 
Distribution reinvestment plan      674,766      15,850 
Issued on conversion of exchangeable shares 73,692      1,623 
Transfer from contributed surplus on unit right exercise -   4,178 
Trust units issued for bonus plan 40,246   827 
Unit rights exercised 1,011,850           8,320 
Balance as at December 31, 2005 62,508,214    $ 274,813 
 
  2005   2004 
CONTRIBUTED SURPLUS    (Restated Note 11) 
Opening balance $ 9,136  $ 7,654 
Discontinued operations  -   (1,800 ) 
Unit compensation expense (Note 11)  13,199   6,738 
Transfer to unitholders’ capital on unit option exercise  (4,178 )  (3,456 ) 
De-consolidation of Verenex (Note 4)  (3,591 )  - 
Ending balance $ 14,566  $ 9,136 
 
10.  NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST 
 
The non-controlling interest on the consolidated balance sheets consists of the book value of the exchangeable shares upon 
issuance plus the accumulated earnings attributable to the non-controlling interest. The net earnings attributable to the non-
controlling interest on the consolidated statement of earnings represents the share of net earnings attributable to the non-
controlling interest based on the Trust units issuable for exchangeable shares in proportion to total trust units issued and 
issuable at each period end.  When all of the exchangeable shares are converted to trust units, there will be no remaining non-
controlling interest. 
  2005   2004 
EXCHANGEABLE SHARES     
Opening number of exchangeable shares  4,675,961   4,848,029 
Exchanged for trust units  (56,626 )  (172,068 ) 
Ending Balance  4,619,335   4,675,961 
Ending exchange ratio  1.37836   1.26626 
Trust units issuable upon conversion  6,367,107   5,920,982 
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10.  NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST (Continued) 
 
Following is a summary of the non-controlling interest: 
  2005   2004 
    (Restated Note 11) 
Non-controlling interest, beginning of year $ 24,686  $ 15,129 
Prior period adjustment (Note 11)  -   185 
Reduction of book value for conversion to trust units  (325 )  (725 ) 
Current period net earnings attributable to non-controlling interest  14,399   10,097 
Non-controlling interest, end of year $ 38,760  $ 24,686 
 
11.  UNIT COMPENSATION PLANS AND RESTATEMENT 
 
Unit Rights Incentive Plan 
The Trust has a unit rights incentive plan that allows the Trust to issue rights to acquire trust units to directors, officers and 
employees. The Trust is authorized to issue up to 6.0 million unit rights; however, the number of trust units reserved for issuance 
upon exercise of the rights shall not at any time exceed 10% of the aggregate number of issued and outstanding trust units of the 
Trust. Unit right exercise prices are equal to the market price for the trust units on the date the unit rights are issued. If certain 
conditions are met, the exercise price per unit may be calculated by deducting from the grant price the aggregate of all 
distributions, on a per-unit basis, made by the Trust after the grant date. Rights granted under the plan vest over a three-year 
period and expire five years after the grant date.  No future rights are expected to be issued as the unit rights incentive plan was 
replaced with a Trust Unit Award Plan in 2005.  The existing rights plan will be in place until all issued and outstanding rights are 
exercised or cancelled. 
 
Restatement of Unit Compensation Expense 
From inception of the unit rights incentive plan until January 1, 2005, the Trust applied the intrinsic value methodology based on 
the initial asessment that the number of uncertainties regarding the reduction in the strike price of the rights precluded a 
reasonable estimate of the fair value of the rights on the date of grant.   
 
Effective on January 1, 2005, the Trust prospectively applied the fair value based method of accounting for the rights plan. 
 
In the fourth quarter of 2005 however, it has been determined that, in the circumstances, the fair value methodology could be 
applied since inception of the plan rather than the intrinsic value methodology.  The Trust has therefore computed a fair value 
estimate of the rights at the respective dates of grant and has retroactively restated its unit compensation expense back to the 
inception of the plan in 2003. 

 
The Trust has restated the 2003 and 2004 unit compensation expense.  The effect is an increase to net earnings before non-
controlling interest in 2004 and 2003 of $20.0 million and $2.4 million respectively.  The change in expense also impacted the 
amount of net earnings attributable to non-controlling interest resulting in an increase to the amount of net earnings allocated to 
non-controlling interest and an increased non-controlling interest on the balance sheet by $1.4 million in 2004 and $0.2 million in 
2003.  Contributed surplus was reduced by $16.1 million in 2004 ($2.4 million in 2003) and unitholders’ capital was reduced by 
$3.9 million in 2004 ($NIL in 2003).  Net earnings increased by $18.6 million ($0.31 per unit) in 2004 and $2.2 million ($0.04 per 
unit) in 2003. 
 
The Trust used the Black-Scholes option-pricing model to calculate the estimated fair value of the outstanding rights.  The 
following assumptions were used to arrive at the estimate of fair value: 
  2004 2003 
Expected volatility   22.33% 31.47% 
Risk-free interest rate 4.0% 4.0% 
Expected life of option (years) 5.0 5.0 
Fair value per option $4.16 - $5.52 $3.99 - $5.15 
 
The dividend yield is offset by the reducing strike price feature of the plan resulting in using a zero dividend yield in the option-
pricing model.  The remaining future fair value of the rights will be recognized in earnings over the remaining vesting period of 
the rights outstanding.  During the year, $6.8 million of the fair value has been recorded as compensation expense (2004 - $6.3 
million).  Any consideration paid upon exercise together with the amount previously recognized in contributed surplus is recorded 
as an increase to unitholders’ capital. 
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11.  UNIT COMPENSATION PLANS AND RESTATEMENT (Continued) 
 
The following table summarizes information about the Trust’s unit rights: 
   2005   2004 
   Number of Weighted Average  Number of   Weighted Average 
   Unit Rights Exercise Price  Unit Rights  Exercise Price 
Opening Balance 4,744,100  $ 13.99  4,543,000  $ 11.59 
 Granted 48,600   20.20  1,471,100   18.10 
 Cancelled (163,100 )  16.79  (413,100 )  11.81 
 Exercised (1,011,850 )  12.13  (856,900 )  9.35 
Closing balance 3,617,750  $ 14.47  4,744,100  $ 13.99 
 
A summary of the plan as at December 31, 2005 is as follows: 
    Remaining 
 Range of Exercise Adjusted Number of Rights   Contractual Life Number of Rights  
  Price at Grant Date Exercise Price Outstanding  of Right (Years) Exercisable 
 $11.45 $5.50 2,116,100 2.1 1,410,733 
 $11.46 - $15.00 $5.68 - $9.22 222,850 2.2 – 3.0 121,200 
 $15.01 - $19.56  $10.93 - $15.48 1,278,800 3.0 – 4.2 381,600 
 
Trust Unit Award Incentive Plan  
In 2005, the Board of Directors established a new Trust Unit Award Incentive Plan (the “Award Plan”) governing the issuance of 
restricted units of the Trust to directors, officers, employees and consultants of the Trust and its Affiliates.  The Award Plan 
consists of units that will be designated as either a Restricted Time Based Award (“RTBA’s”) for which the number of awards is 
fixed or a Performance Based Award (“PBA’s”) for which the number of awards is variable. 
 
Upon vesting, the grantee will be delivered units of the Trust, adjusted for cumulative distributions of the Trust during the period 
that the restricted units are outstanding.  The number of units issued upon vesting of the PBA’s is dependent upon the future 
performance of the Trust compared to its peers based on a performance factor that may range from zero to two times the 
number of PBA’s originally granted.  The vesting date for all restricted units shall be on the date that is the third anniversary of 
the date of the Unit Award.  Awards granted in which 2005 is the grantee’s first year of service, will vest over three years. 
 
The following table summarizes information about the Award Plan:  
       Number of Awards 
Balance December 31, 2004       - 
 Granted       740,675 
 Cancelled       (85,125 ) 
Balance December 31, 2005       655,550 
 
A compensation expense of $3.3 million has been recorded at December 31, 2005.  The fair value of unexercised rights is 
determined using the Black-Scholes model and management’s estimate of the number of Restricted Units to be issued on 
maturity.  The value is deferred and recognized as an expense over the vesting period of the Awards.  The dividend yield is 
offset by the cumulative distributions resulting in using a zero dividend yield in the model. 
 
  2005 
Expected volatility   18.0% 
Risk-free interest rate 3.5% 
Expected life of option (years) 3.0 
Fair value per unit $15.57 - $20.59 
 
Verenex Energy Inc. Compensation Plans 
Effective December 15, 2005, Verenex is not considered to be controlled by the Trust (Note 4).  Operations to December 15, 
2005 have been consolidated with the Trust.  Verenex has a stock option plan and performance warrants outstanding.  The Trust 
has recognized $3.1 million in stock compensation expense for the options and warrants of Verenex up to December 15, 2005 
(2004 - $0.5 million). 
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12.  PER-UNIT AMOUNTS 
 
The following table shows the effect of dilutive securities on the weighted average trust units outstanding: 
 
  2005  2004 
BASIC   (Restated) 
Net earnings from continuing operations per unit $2.57  $1.10 
Net earnings per unit  $2.57  $2.12 
Weighted-average number of units outstanding (thousands) 61,755  60,166 
DILUTED 
Net earnings from continuing operations per unit $2.49  $1.07 
Net earnings per unit  $2.49  $2.07 
Weighted-average number of units outstanding (thousands) 69,395  66,375 
 
The number of units used to calculate diluted earnings per unit for the year ended December 31, 2005, of 69.4 million (2004 – 
66.4 million) included the weighted-average number of units outstanding of 61.8 million (2004 – 60.2 million) plus 1.2 million 
(2004 – 0.3 million) units related to the dilutive effect of unit rights and 6.4 million for outstanding exchangeable shares at the 
period end exchange ratio (2004 – 5.9 million). 
 
The determination of diluted net earnings per unit was not affected by (2004 -990,800) unit rights that would be anti-dilutive 
because the respective exercise prices exceeded the average market price of the units.  Net earnings attributable to the non-
controlling interest-exchangeable shares were added back to net earnings from operations in calculating dilutive per unit 
amounts. 
 
The unrecognized compensation cost is considered to be part of the assumed proceeds to purchase trust units under the 
treasury stock method. 
 
13.  DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS 
 
Risk Management Activities 
 
The nature of the Trust’s operations result in exposure to fluctuations in commodity prices, interest rates and foreign currency 
exchange rates.  The Trust monitors and, when appropriate, uses derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to 
these risks.  The Trust is exposed to credit-related losses in the event of non-performance by counterparties to the financial 
instruments. 
 
The Trust uses power swap agreements to manage the risk associated with fluctuating electricity costs.  The Trust has entered 
into swaps for 2.0 mw/h at $48.50 per mwh and 2.0 mw/h at $65.17 per mwh in 2006 to 2008. 
 
The Trust uses a variety of options including funded and costless collars and puts to manage the risk associated with fluctuating 
commodity prices on the sale of crude oil and natural gas.  The Trust does not obtain collateral or other security to support its 
collars as the majority of these instruments are with the Trust’s banking syndicate.  
 
Risk Management: Oil Funded Cost bbls/d US$/bbl  
Collar – WTI  
 Q1 2006 US$0.50-$1.00/bbl 1,250 $53.00 - $72.75 
 Q2 2006 US$1.50/bbl 250 $53.00 - $73.90 
Collar - BRENT 
 2006  US$1.00/bbl 1,000 $53.00 - $67.70 
 Q3 2006 US$1.00/bbl 250 $52.00 - $68.50 
 Q4 2006  US$1.50/bbl 250 $53.00 - $69.80 
 
Risk Management: Natural Gas Funded Cost GJ/d C$/GJ  
Collar 
 Q1 2006  $0.25/GJ 2,500 $9.50 - $16.00 
 Feb-Mar 2006  costless 2,500 $11.00 - $20.74 
 Apr-Oct 2006  $0.25/GJ 2,500 $8.00 - $15.00 
Put 
 Q1 2006  $0.23/GJ 5,000 $10.50 
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13.  DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 
 
As discussed in Note 2, on January 1, 2004 the fair value of all outstanding derivative financial instruments that are not recorded 
as accounting hedges were recorded on the consolidated balance sheets with an offsetting amount to deferred charges.  The 
deferred charge was recognized into revenue over the life of the associated contracts.  Of the total deferred charge of $14,427 
recorded at January 1, 2004, $9,709 was recognized as a charge to revenue in the year ended December 31, 2004 and $4,718 
was recognized in 2005. 
 
Changes in fair value after January 1, 2004 are recorded on the consolidated balance sheets with the associated unrealized gain 
or loss recorded in net earnings.  The estimated fair value of all derivative financial instruments is based on quoted market prices 
or, in their absence, third party market indications and forecasts.  Unrealized gains or losses and realized gains or losses are 
recorded as a separate element of earnings.   
 
The following table presents a reconciliation of the change in the unrealized amounts from January 1, 2005 to December 31, 
2005 and the related total gain or loss during the year:  
 
  Fair Value  Total Gain (Loss) 
Fair value of contracts, January 1, 2005 $ (21,610 ) $ - 
Change in fair value of contracts still outstanding at January 1, 2005 21,610  21,610   
Contract settlements realized during the year -  (41,180 )  
Fair value of contracts entered into during the year 783  783 
  $ 783  $ (18,787 ) 
 
The following table presents a reconciliation of the change in the unrealized amounts from January 1, 2004 to December 31, 
2004:  
 
  Fair Value  Total Gain (Loss) 
Fair value of contracts, January 1, 2004 $ (14,427 ) $ - 
Change in fair value of contracts still outstanding at December 31, 2004 (7,183 ) (7,183 )  
Contract settlements realized during the period -  (31,414 )  
Fair value of contracts entered into during the period -  - 
Fair value of contracts outstanding, end of period $ (21,610 ) $ (38,597 ) 
 
The fair value amounts are recorded on the consolidated balance sheets as follows:  
 
   2005  2004 
Fair value of derivative instruments    
 Current asset $    1,166  $ 68 
 Current liability (383 ) (21,678 ) 
Total fair value of derivative instruments $ 783  $ (21,610 ) 
 
Fair Values 
 
The carrying values of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued liabilities and long-term 
debt approximated their fair values as at December 31, 2005 and 2004 as a result of the short-term nature of these instruments 
and, in the case of long-term debt, having variable interest rates which approximate market value. 
 
14.  CASH FLOW INFORMATION 
 
The following amounts represent the changes in non-cash working capital per balance sheet accounts: 
 
  2005  2004 
Accounts receivable $ (13,087 ) $ (16,843 ) 
Crude oil inventory (5,811 ) (991 ) 
Prepaid expenses and other (4,369 ) (2,073 ) 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (17,017 ) 5,140  
Foreign exchange 531  219 
Changes in non-cash working capital $ (39,753 ) $ (14,548 ) 
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15.  SEGMENTED INFORMATION 
 
The Trust has operations principally in Canada, France, the Netherlands and Australia. The Netherlands assets were acquired 
effective May 19, 2004 and the Australia operations were acquired effective March 31, 2005.  The Trust’s entire operating 
activities are related to exploration, development and production of petroleum and natural gas. 
 
  2005  2004 
PETROLEUM AND NATURAL GAS REVENUE 
Canada  $ 243,199  $ 212,567 
France   133,729   99,829 
Netherlands  72,525   42,129 
Australia   80,485   - 
  $ 529,938  $ 354,525 
NET EARNINGS     (Restated) 
Canada  $ 57,383  $ 108,889 
France   47,652   7,987 
Netherlands  24,038   10,637 
Australia   29,398   - 
  $ 158,471  $ 127,513 
FUNDS FROM OPERATIONS    
Canada  $ 130,023  $ 107,187 
France   62,145   31,458 
Netherlands  50,940   31,534 
Australia   35,057   - 
  $ 278,165  $ 170,179 
CAPITAL EXPENDITURES  
Canada  $ 141,022  $ 31,722 
France   50,649   35,028 
Netherlands  12,434   94,499 
Australia   96,005   - 
  $ 300,110  $ 161,249 
TOTAL ASSETS 
Canada  $ 588,462  $ 433,949 
France   255,816   268,801 
Netherlands  121,296   141,852 
Australia   146,165   - 
  $ 1,111,739  $ 844,602 
 
16.  RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
 
During the period, Vermilion initially paid for various expenditures on behalf of Verenex and then recovered such amounts from 
Verenex.   These transactions were measured at the exchange amount, which is the amount of consideration established and 
agreed to by the related parties.  These transactions were undertaken under the same terms and conditions as transactions with 
non-related parties. 
 
17.  COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 
 
The Trust has various commitments and guarantees in the normal course of business, none of which, in managements view, are 
significant. 
 
18.  GUARANTEES  
 
In the normal course of operations, the Trust executes agreements that provide for indemnification and guarantees to counter-
parties in transactions such as the sale of assets and operating leases. 
 
These indemnifications and guarantees may require compensation to counterparties for costs and losses incurred as a result of 
various events, including breaches of representations and warranties, loss of or damages to property, environmental liabilities or 
as a result of litigation that may be suffered by the counterparties. 
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18.  GUARANTEES (Continued) 
 
Certain indemnifications can extend for an unlimited period and generally do not provide for any limit on the maximum potential 
amount. The nature of substantially all of the indemnifications prevents the Trust from making a reasonable estimate of the 
maximum potential amount that might be required to pay counterparties as the agreements do not specify a maximum amount, 
and the amounts depend on the outcome of future contingent events, the nature and likelihood of which cannot be determined at 
this time. 
 
19.  COMPARATIVE FIGURES 
 
Certain of the prior-period numbers have been reclassified to conform with the current period presentation. 
 
20.  SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 
 
On October 18, 2005, Vermilion announced that a wholly-owned subsidiary entered into an exclusive arrangement with a French 
subsidiary of Exxon Mobil Corporation, to negotiate the purchase of its 89.89% shareholding in Esso REP.  Any transaction 
would be subject to the parties entering into a definitive purchase and sale agreement which would be subject to the satisfaction 
of all conditions precedent, including due diligence and the receipt of all necessary regulatory approvals and which will require 
consultation with appropriate employee representative groups.   
 
21.  DIFFERENCES BETWEEN CANADIAN AND UNITED STATES OF AMERICA GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING  
 PRINCIPLES 
 
The consolidated financial statements of the Trust have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in Canada (“Canadian GAAP”) which in most respects, conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America (“U.S. GAAP”).  The significant differences, as they apply to the Trust are shown below. 
 
Consolidated statements of earnings in accordance with U.S. GAAP is as follows: 
    2005   2004 
      (Restated Note 11) 
Net earnings from continuing operations - Canadian GAAP  $ 158,471  $ 66,010 
Depreciation, depletion and accretion (Note 21-1,3,4)  628   553 
Gain (loss) on derivative instruments (Note 21-2)  4,718   9,709 
Deferred income taxes (Note 21-1)  (201 )  1,572 
Non-controlling interest - exchangeable shares (Note 21-4)  14,399   5,314 
Net earnings from continuing operations - U.S. GAAP  178,015   83,158 
Net earnings from discontinued operations  -   61,503 
Non-controlling interest - exchangeable shares (Note 21-4)  -   4,783 
Net earnings - U.S. GAAP $ 178,015  $ 149,444 
Earnings from continuing operations per trust unit for U.S. GAAP  
   Basic  $ 2.61  $ 1.26 
   Diluted  $ 2.57   1.25 
Earnings per trust unit for U.S. GAAP  
   Basic  $ 2.61  $ 2.26 
   Diluted  $ 2.57  $ 2.25 
Weighted average trust units outstanding 
   Basic    68,122,539   66,087,146 
   Diluted   69,395,074   66,375,229 
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21.  DIFFERENCES BETWEEN CANADIAN AND UNITED STATES OF AMERICA GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING  
 PRINCIPLES (Continued) 
 
Consolidated balance sheets in accordance with U.S. GAAP is as follows: 
   2005  2005  2004  2004 
      CDN GAAP  U.S. GAAP  CDN GAAP  U.S. GAAP 
ASSETS  (Restated Note 11) 
CURRENT 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 42,777  $ 42,777  $ 65,031  $ 65,031 
Accounts receivable  75,639   75,639   54,044   54,044 
Crude oil inventory  10,279   10,279   4,468   4,468 

 Fair value of derivative instruments (Note 21-2)  1,166   1,166   68   68 
 Prepaid expenses and other  9,387   9,387   5,022   5,022 
    139,248   139,248   128,633   128,633 
Deferred charges for derivative instruments (Note 21-2)  -   -   4,718   - 
Long-term investment  19,096   19,096   5,398   5,398 
Reclamation fund  42,198   42,198   17,016   17,016 
Goodwill   19,840   19,840   -   - 
Capital assets (Note 21-1,3,4)  891,357   890,127   688,837   685,299 
   $ 1,111,739  $ 1,110,509  $ 844,602  $ 836,346 
LIABILITIES 
CURRENT 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 90,422  $ 90,422  $ 85,837  $ 85,837 
Distributions payable to unitholders  10,626   10,626   10,320   10,320 

 Income taxes payable  11,607   11,607   23,798   23,798 
 Fair value of derivative instruments (Note 21-2)  383   383   21,678   21,678 
    113,038   113,038   141,633   141,633 
Long-term debt  271,099   271,099   75,014   75,014 
Asset retirement obligation  70,214   70,214   51,688   51,688 
Future income taxes (Note 21-1)  160,475   167,778   145,680   150,950 
    614,826   622,129   414,015   419,285 
Non-controlling interest  -   -   16,257   16,257 
Non-controlling interest – exchangeable shares (Note 21-4) 38,760   -   24,686   - 
Temporary equity  -   2,118,935   -   1,368,932 
UNITHOLDERS’ EQUITY 

Unitholders’ capital (Note 21-4)  274,813   -   244,015  - 
Contributed surplus  14,566   -   9,136  - 
Accumulated earnings  516,514  (1,282,815)  358,043  (746,578 ) 

 Accumulated cash distributions  (347,740)    (347,740)  (221,550 ) (221,550 ) 
    458,153  (1,630,555)  389,644  (968,128 ) 
   $ 1,111,739  $ 1,110,509  $ 844,602  $ 836,346 

 
1) Income Tax and Related Depreciation, Depletion and Accretion  
 
 In 2000, the Trust adopted the liability method to account for income taxes for Canadian GAAP.  The change to the liability 

method eliminated a difference between Canadian and U.S. GAAP, however, in accordance with the recommendations of 
the CICA the effect of the adoption under Canadian GAAP resulted in a charge to retained earnings, whereas, under U.S. 
GAAP the deferred income taxes that resulted in the Canadian GAAP retained earnings adjustment would have been 
reflected in capital assets.  As a result of the difference in implementation method, depreciation and depletion expense will 
differ between U.S. and Canadian GAAP in subsequent years due to the additional amounts capitalized under U.S. GAAP. 

 
 The adjustment related to the U.S. GAAP difference described above is as follows: 
 

Increase (decrease)  2005   2004 
Depreciation, depletion and accretion $ 1,603  $ 1,943 
Deferred income tax expense  (603 )  (755 ) 
Property, plant and equipment  (1,603 )  (1,943 ) 
Deferred tax liability $ (603 ) $ (755 ) 
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21.  DIFFERENCES BETWEEN CANADIAN AND UNITED STATES OF AMERICA GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING  
 PRINCIPLES (Continued) 
 
2) Derivative and Other Financial Instruments 
 

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging 
Activities” (“SFAS 133”), as modified by SFAS No. 138 “Accounting for Certain Derivative Instruments and Certain Hedging 
Activities”, establishes accounting and reporting standards requiring that every derivative instrument be recorded in the 
balance sheet as either an asset or liability measured at its fair value, and that change in the fair value be recognized 
currently in earnings unless specific hedge accounting criteria are met.  This statement requires an entity to establish, at the 
inception of a hedge, the method it will use for assessing the effectiveness of the hedging derivative and the measurement 
approach for determining the ineffective aspects of the hedge.  Those methods must be consistent with the entity’s approach 
to managing risk.   

 
 Prior to January 1, 2004 the Trust had designated, for Canadian GAAP purposes, its derivative financial instruments as 

hedges of anticipated revenue and expenses.  In accordance with Canadian GAAP, payments or receipts on these contracts 
were recognized in earnings concurrently with the hedged transactions.  The fair values of the contracts accounted for as 
hedges were not reflected in the consolidated financial statements under Canadian GAAP. 

 
Effective January 1, 2004, the Trust prospectively adopted CICA Accounting Guideline – 13 “Hedging Relationships” (“AcG-
13”).  This effectively eliminates U.S. GAAP differences relating to financial instruments that do not qualify for hedge 
accounting for future periods.   

Upon adoption of AcG-13, deferred credits for derivative instruments of $14,427 were recognized representing the fair 
market value of derivative financial instruments in place as of January 1, 2004.  The deferred charges are amortized over 
the life of the derivative financial instruments for Canadian GAAP and were equal to the aggregate of U.S. GAAP gains and 
losses incurred on these instruments, prior to January 1, 2004.  During 2005, the remaining deferred charges of $4,718 were 
amortized to income under AcG-13 ($9,709 in 2004).  Because this amount was previously recognized and reversed against 
accumulated earnings for U.S. GAAP, the amount has been reversed in the current period for U.S. GAAP. 

 
Increase (decrease)  2005   2004 
(Gain) loss on derivative instruments $ -  $ - 
Deferred income tax expense  -   (1,883 )  
Deferred income tax liability  -   (1,883 )  
Revenue        4,718   9,709 
Accumulated earnings    (4,718 )  (14,427 ) 
Deferred charges for derivative financial instruments $ -  $ (4,718 ) 

 

3) Business Combinations Effected by Issuance of Shares 
 
 For both Canadian and U.S. GAAP, the quoted market price of the shares issued in a business combination is used to 

estimate the fair value of the acquired enterprise after recognizing possible effects of price fluctuations, quantities traded, 
issue costs, and similar items.  The value of the shares is based on their market price over a reasonable period before and 
after the date the terms of the business combination are agreed to and announced.  Under SFAS 141, business combination 
under U.S. GAAP, the period of time determined to be reasonable for assessing the market value of the shares, is 
considered to be two days before and two days after the date of announcement.  The resulting change in the carrying value 
of the acquired assets as prescribed under U.S. GAAP resulted in changes to the related depreciation and depletion 
expense in the current and prior years. 

 
 The adjustment related to the U.S. GAAP difference described above, is related to business combinations that occurred 

prior to 2002: 
 
 Increase (decrease)  2005   2004 
 Depreciation, depletion and accretion $ 134  $ 482 
 Property, plant and equipment $ (134 ) $ (482 ) 
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21.  DIFFERENCES BETWEEN CANADIAN AND UNITED STATES OF AMERICA GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING  
 PRINCIPLES (Continued) 

 
4)  Unitholders’ Capital 
 
 Under adoption of EITF D-98 “Classification and Measurement of Redeemable Securities”, the Trust records the redemption 

value of all outstanding trust units and exchangeable shares as temporary equity on the consolidated balance sheets. The 
amount included for Unitholders' Equity is reduced by an amount equal to the redemption value of the trust units as at the 
balance sheet date.  The redemption value of the trust units is determined with respect to the trading value of the trust units 
and the trust unit equivalent of the exchangeable shares at each balance sheet date, and the amount of the redemption 
value is classified as temporary equity.  Under Canadian GAAP, all trust units are classified as unitholders’ equity and 
exchangeable shares as non-controlling interest.  As at December 31, 2005 and 2004, the Trust has classified $2,118,935 
and $1,368,932 respectively, as temporary equity in accordance with US GAAP.   

 
 Under Canadian GAAP, the Company's exchangeable shares are classified as non-controlling interest to reflect a minority 

ownership in one of the Trust's subsidiaries.  As these exchangeable shares are ultimately to be converted into trust units, 
the exchangeable shares are classified as temporary equity along with the trust units (see Note 10) under U.S. GAAP.  As a 
result, non-controlling interest is eliminated for the determination of earnings for U.S. GAAP purposes. 

 
 The adjustment related to the U.S. GAAP difference described above is as follows: 
  
 Increase (decrease)  2005   2004 
   (Restated Note 11) 
 Unitholders’ capital $ (273,901 ) $ (243,103 ) 
 Contributed surplus        (14,566  )        (9,136 ) 
 Non-controlling interest – exchangeable shares  (38,760 )  (24,686 ) 
 Capital assets  (13,310 )  (17,355 ) 
 Future income taxes  (5,114 )  (5,918 ) 
 Non-controlling interest – exchangeable shares  (14,399 )  (10,097 )  
 Depletion  (2,365 )  (2,978 )  
 Future income taxes  804   1,016 
 Accumulated earnings  (1,815,864 )  (1,115,503 ) 
 Temporary equity $ 2,118,935  $ 1,368,932 
   
5) Ceiling Test  
 
 Under U.S. GAAP full cost accounting, the carrying value of petroleum and natural gas properties and related facilities, net 

of deferred income taxes, is limited to the present value of after tax future net revenue from proven reserves, discounted at 
10% (based on unescalated prices and costs at the balance sheet date), plus the lower of cost and fair value of unproven 
properties.  Under Canadian GAAP, an impairment loss occurs when the carrying amount of the Trust’s property plant and 
equipment exceeds the estimated un-discounted future net cash flows associated with the Trust’s proved reserves.  If an 
impairment loss is determined to occur, the costs carried on the balance sheet in excess of the discounted future net cash 
flows associated with the Trust’s proved and probable reserves are charged to income.  The application of the impairment 
test under U.S. GAAP did not result in a write-down of capitalized costs in either 2005 or 2004. 

 
6) Stock-based Compensation 
 
 Prior to 2005, the Trust was accounting for Stock-based Compensation using the intrinsic value method.  On January 1, 

2005, the Trust prospectively applied the fair value method, and restated compensation expense for 2003 and 2004.  Now 
that the fair value method is being used and the compensation expense is deferred and recognized in income over the 
vesting period of the rights, there is no difference between Canadian and U.S. GAAP. 

 
7) Effects on Cash Flow  
 
 i)  The Trust presents funds from operations before changes in non-cash working capital as a subtotal in the consolidated 

statement of cash flows.  This line item would not be presented in a cash flow statement prepared in accordance with 
U.S. GAAP.   
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21.  DIFFERENCES BETWEEN CANADIAN AND UNITED STATES OF AMERICA GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING  
 PRINCIPLES (Continued) 

 
 ii) Under Canadian GAAP, the Trust recorded cash flows related to derivative instruments of $41.2 million (for the 12 

month period ended December 31, 2005, $31.4 million for the same period in 2004) which flowed through the 
consolidated statements of cash flows as an operating activity.  Under U.S. GAAP, cash flow related to derivative 
instruments are classified as investing activities.  The result is a classification difference on the consolidated statements 
of cash flows with no change in the cash balance at the end of the period.  

 
8) Recent U.S. Accounting Standards 
 
 i) In November 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Statement 151, Inventory Costs. This 

statement amends ARB 43 to clarify that: 
 

 abnormal amounts of idle facility expense, freight, handling costs and wasted material (spoilage) should be 
recognized as current-period charges; and 

 requires the allocation of fixed production overhead to inventory based on the normal capacity of the production 
facilities. 

 
 The provisions of this statement are effective for inventory costs incurred during fiscal years beginning after June 15, 

2005. We do not expect the adoption of this statement to have any material impact on our results of operation or 
financial position. 

 
 ii) In December 2004, the FASB issued FAS No. 123 (revised 2004) (“FAS 123R”), “Share-Based Payment”, which is a 

revision of FAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-based Compensation”. FAS 123R requires all share-based payments to 
employees, including grants of employee stock options, to be recognized in the financial statements based on their fair 
values and does not allow the previously permitted pro forma disclosure as an alternative to financial statement 
recognition. Liability classified awards are re-measured to fair value at each balance sheet date until the award is 
settled. FAS 123R supersedes Accounting Principles Board (“APB”) Opinion No. 25 “Accounting for Stock Issued to 
Employees”, and related interpretations and amends FAS No. 95 “Statement of Cash Flows”. FAS 123R is scheduled to 
be effective beginning fiscal 2006. On August 31, 2005, the FASB issued FSP FAS 123R-1 to defer the requirement 
that a freestanding financial instrument originally subject to FAS 123R becomes subject to the recognition and 
measurement requirements of other applicable generally accepted accounting principles when the rights conveyed by 
the instrument to the holder are no longer dependent on the holder being an employee of the entity. On October 18, 
2005, the FASB issued FSP FAS 123R-2 to provide further guidance on the application of grant date as defined in FAS 
123R. The Trust is currently assessing the impact of FAS 123R and related FSPs on its consolidated financial 
statements. 

 
 iii) In December 2004, the FASB issued Statement 153, Exchanges of Non-monetary Assets, an amendment of APB 

Opinion 29, Accounting for Non-monetary Transactions. This amendment eliminates the exception for non-monetary 
exchanges of similar productive assets and replaces it with a general exception for exchanges of non-monetary assets 
that do not have commercial substance. Under Statement 153, if a non-monetary exchange of similar productive assets 
meets a commercial-substance criterion and fair value is determinable, the transaction must be accounted for at fair 
value resulting in recognition of any gain or loss. This statement is effective for non-monetary transactions in fiscal 
periods that begin after June 15, 2005. The adoption of this statement is not anticipated to have any material impact on 
our results of operation or financial position. 

 
     iv) In May 2005, the FASB issued FAS No. 154 “Accounting Changes and Error Corrections – a replacement of APB 

Opinion No. 20 and FAS Statement No. 3”. FAS 154 requires an entity to account for the adoption of a new accounting 
policy by applying the new principle to prior accounting periods as if the principle had always been adopted, or 
“retrospective application”. Under existing GAAP, a new principle is not applied to prior periods; rather, the cumulative 
effect of the change is recognized in earnings in the period of the change. FAS 154 also carries forward without change 
the guidance from Opinion No. 20 for reporting the correction of an error in previously issued financial statements and 
the accounting for changes in estimate. The provisions of FAS 154 will be effective for accounting changes and 
corrections of errors made in fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2005. 
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